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chapter V-1.1,r. 10

REGULATION  31-103 RESPECTING REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS,
EXEMPTIONS AND ONGOING REGISTRANT OBLIGATIONS '\

M.O. 2009-04, s. 1.1; M.O. 2011-03, s. 1. (]/Q
b‘ﬂ

Securities Act '\

(chapter V-1.1, s. 331.1) 4

v
N

1.1. Definitions of terms used throughout this Regﬂngon

PART 1 INTERPRETATION

In this Regulation f\(b

“Canadian financial institution” has ttfel/same meaning as in section 1.1 of
Regulation 45-106 respecting Prospectusmq Registration Exemptions (chapter V-1.1,
r.21);

“connected issuer” has the m& meaning as in section 1.1 of Regulation 33-105
respecting Underwriting Conflict apter V-1.1, r. 11);

“debt security” has@same meaning as in section 1.1 of Regulation 45-106
respecting Prospectus @ egistration Exemptions;

“eligible clieAt, eans a client of a person if any of the following apply:

(@) lient is an individual and was a client of the person immediately
before bea igly resident in the local jurisdiction;

the client is the spouse or a child of a client referred to in paragraph (a);

(c) except in Ontario, the client is a client of the person on

ptember 27, 2009 pursuant to the person's reliance on an exemption from the

registration requirement under Part 5 of Regulation 11-101 respecting Principal
Regulator System (M.O. 2005-18, 05-08-09) on that date;

“exempt market dealer” means a person registered in the category of exempt
market dealer;
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“IIROC” means the Investment Industry Regulatory Organization of Canada,

“IIROC Provision” means a by-law, rule, regulation or policy of IROC named in
Appendix G, as amended from time to time;

“interim period” means a period commencing on the first day of the financial ’@D
and ending 9, 6 or 3 months before the end of the financial year; Q

“investment dealer” means a person registered in the category o&n{/ktment
)

dealer;
N

“managed account” means an account of a client for which wéerson makes the
investment decisions if that person has discretion to trade in seadNtjes for the account
without requiring the client’'s express consent to a transaction; 5

“marketplace” has the same meaning as in secji .1 of Regulation 21-101
respecting Marketplace Operation (chapter V-1.1, r. 5);

“MFDA” means the Mutual Fund Dealers As&{g{ation of Canada;

“MFDA Provision” means a by-law, rule%ulation or policy of the MFDA named
in Appendix H, as amended from time to t|

“mutual fund dealer” means iw(g)n registered in the category of mutual fund
dealer;

“permitted client” me n@ of the following:
(@) a Canadiggm\ancial institution or a Schedule Il bank;

(b) the ﬁ% ess Development Bank of Canada incorporated under the
Business Devel nt Bank of Canada Act (S.C., 1995, chapter 28);

(c) ubS|d|ary of any person referred to in paragraph (a) or (b), if the person
owns all e voting securities of the subsidiary, except the voting securities required
by Ia @ owned by directors of the subsidiary;

(d) a person registered under the securities legislation of a jurisdiction of
nada as an adviser, investment dealer, mutual fund dealer or exempt market dealer;

(e) a pension fund that is regulated by either the federal Office of the
Superintendent of Financial Institutions or a pension commission or similar regulatory
authority of a jurisdiction of Canada or a wholly-owned subsidiary of such a pension
fund;
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() an entity organized in a foreign jurisdiction that is analogous to any of the
entities referred to in paragraphs (a) to (e);

(g0 the Government of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada, or any Crown
corporation, agency or wholly-owned entity of the Government of Canada or_,.a
jurisdiction of Canada; ,\

(h)  any national, federal, state, provincial, territorial or municipal gova/@nent
of or in any foreign jurisdiction, or any agency of that government;
)
(1) a municipality, public board or commission in Canada a d'a\metropolitan
community, school board, the Comité de gestion de la taxe scolaire<#4l'lle de Montreal
or an intermunicipal management board in Québec; \/

()] a trust company or trust corporation registered &authorized to carry on
business under the Trust and Loan Companies Act (S. 91, chapter 45) or under
comparable legislation in a jurisdiction of Canada or“\Joreign jurisdiction, acting on
behalf of a managed account managed by the trust q%pany or trust corporation, as the
case may be;

(k) a person acting on behalf of a m%}aged account managed by the person,
if the person is registered or authorizedNo garry on business as an adviser or the
equivalent under the securities |egiS|6¢fBT of a jurisdiction of Canada or a foreign

jurisdiction; _\

)] an investment fun '?r?e or both of the following apply:

0] the@s managed by a person registered as an investment fund

manager under the secymmes legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada,

(i) %und is advised by a person authorized to act as an adviser
under the secu@ egislation of a jurisdiction of Canada;

(m) Gg’respect of a dealer, a registered charity under the Income Tax Act
(R.S.C. - chapter 1 (5" Supp.)) that obtains advice on the securities to be traded
from @Ilgibility adviser, as defined in section 1.1 of Regulation 45-106 respecting
Pro$gecius and Registration Exemptions, or an adviser registered under the securities

@I tion of the jurisdiction of the registered charity;
N\

(n) in respect of an adviser, a registered charity under the Income Tax Act
that is advised by an eligibility adviser, as defined in section 1.1 of Regulation 45-106
respecting Prospectus and Registration Exemptions, or an adviser registered under the
securities legislation of the jurisdiction of the registered charity;
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(o) an individual who beneficially owns financial assets, as defined in
section 1.1 of 45-106, having an aggregate realizable value that, before taxes but net of
any related liabilities, exceeds $5,000,000;

(p)  aperson that is entirely owned by an individual or individuals referred to in
paragraph (0), who holds the beneficial ownership interest in the person directly Qr
through a trust, the trustee of which is a trust company or trust corporation registerq@
authorized to carry on business under the Trust and Loan Companies Act of r
comparable legislation in a jurisdiction of Canada or a foreign jurisdiction; (]/

(@) a person, other than an individual or an investment fun %f‘ has net
assets of at least $25,000,000 as shown on its most recently prepa¥ed financial
statements;

(9] a person that distributes securities of its own ?b in Canada only to
persons referred to in paragraphs (a) to (q);

“portfolio manager” means a person registere&ln the category of portfolio

manager,
N

“principal jurisdiction” means Q

(@) for a person other than an iwv{dual, the jurisdiction of Canada in which
the person’s head office is located, and (b

(b) for an individual, t ~krisdiction of Canada in which the individual's
working office is located;

“registered firm” m@a registered dealer, a registered adviser, or a registered
investment fund manag@

“registered an'ual” means an individual who is registered

(@) &zategory that authorizes the individual to act as a dealer or an adviser
L

on behalf a gistered firm,

Q as ultimate designated person, or

(c) as chief compliance officer;

“related issuer” has the same meaning as in section 1.1 of Regulation 33-105
respecting Underwriting Conflicts;

“restricted dealer” means a person registered in the category of restricted dealer;
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“restricted portfolio manager” means a person registered in the category of
restricted portfolio manager;

“Schedule Il bank” means an authorized foreign bank named in Schedule Il of
the Bank Act (S.C., 1991, c. 46);

“scholarship plan dealer” means a person registered in the categor)\(b
scholarship plan dealer; Q

“sponsoring firm” means the registered firm on whose behalf an indiv'dugllﬁcts as
a dealer, an underwriter, an adviser, a chief compliance officer (K ® ultimate
designated person;

“subsidiary” has the same meaning as in section 1.1 egulation 45-106
respecting Prospectus and Registration Exemptions; 5

“working office” means the office of the sponsorin @ where an individual does
most of his or her business. '{

M.O 2009-04, s. 1.1; M.O. 2010-17, s. 1; M.O. 2011‘6?,5. 2; M.O. 2012-01, s. 1.

1.2. Interpretation of “securities” in Albe@British Columbia, New Brunswick
and Saskatchewan N

In Alberta, British Columbia,%vszgrunswick and Saskatchewan, a reference to
“securities” in this Regulation iggludes “exchange contracts”, unless the context

otherwise requires. ;
M.O 2009-04, s. 1.2. @

1.3. Information r& given to the principal regulator
In this s tl«

(1) ION, “principal regulator” means

@) Gg\ a person whose head office is in a jurisdiction of Canada, the securities
regulatg hority or regulator of that jurisdiction, and

for a registered person whose head office is not in Canada, the securities
@Iatory authority or regulator of,

0] if the person has not completed its first financial year since being
registered, the jurisdiction of Canada in which the person expects most of its clients to
be resident at the end of its current financial year, and
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(i) in all other circumstances, the jurisdiction of Canada in which most
of the person’s clients were resident at the end of its most recently completed financial
year.

(2) Except under the following sections, for the purpose of a requirement in this
Regulation to notify the regulator or the securities regulatory authority, the person m
notify the regulator or the securities regulatory authority by notifying the perx
principal regulator:

Q
(@) section 8.18; b‘:]/
(b) section 8.26; 4 '\
(© section 11.9; 0\,
(d) section 11.10. 5
3) For the purpose of a requirement in this Reg&gn to deliver or submit a

document to the regulator or the securities regulatogguthority, the person may deliver
or submit the document by delivering or submittir&h\g he person’s principal regulator.

M.O 2009-04, s. 1.3; M.O. 2011-03, s. 3. (l/

)
PART 2 CATEGORIES OF REGISIFB'}FION FOR INDIVIDUALS
2.1. Individual categories ?:\

(2) The following are the c ories of registration for an individual who is required,
under securities Iegislatior@%e registered to act on behalf of a registered firm:

(@) dealingqggsentative;
(b) a is% representative;

(c) Ca)sociate advising representative;

Q ultimate designated person;
A é (e)  chief compliance officer.

}) An individual registered in the category of

(@) dealing representative may act as a dealer or an underwriter in respect of
a security that the individual’s sponsoring firm is permitted to trade or underwrite,
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(b) advising representative may act as an adviser in respect of a security that
the individual’'s sponsoring firm is permitted to advise on,

(c) associate advising representative may act as an adviser in respect of a
security that the individual’s sponsoring firm is permitted to advise on if the advice has

been approved under subsection 4.2(1), (b

(d) ultimate designated person must perform the functions set Qt in
section 5.1, and (]/

(e)  chief compliance officer must perform the functions set out i&&tﬂon 5.2.

(3)  Subsection (1) does not apply in Ontario. ~\
M.O 2009-04, s. 2.1. 50
2.2. Client mobility exemption —individuals O

(1)  The registration requirement does not apply an individual if all of the following
apply:

(@) the individual is registered as a(bealing, advising or associate advising
representative in the individual’s principal j'Kisdiction;

(b)  the individual’s sponﬁn firm is registered in the firm’'s principal

jurisdiction; v
(© the individual do ot act as a dealer, underwriter or adviser in the local
jurisdiction other than as r she is permitted to in his or her principal jurisdiction

according to the individ egistration in that jurisdiction;

(d) the | %ual does not act as a dealer, underwriter or adviser in the local
jurisdiction othep than for 5 or fewer eligible clients;

(e) be individual complies with Part 13;

Q.

the individual deals fairly, honestly and in good faith in the course of his or
herQa Ings with an eligible client;

(9) before first acting as a dealer or adviser for an eligible client, the
individual's sponsoring firm has disclosed to the client that the individual, and if the firm
is relying on section 8.30, the firm,

(1) is exempt from registration in the local jurisdiction, and
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(i) IS not subject to requirements otherwise applicable under local
securities legislation.

(2) If an individual relies on the exemption in this section, the individual’'s sponsoring
firm must submit a completed Form 31-103F3 Use of Mobility Exemption to the
securities regulatory authority of the local jurisdiction as soon as possible after t};g

individual first relies on this section. '\
M.O 2009-04, s. 2.2; M.O. 2011-03, s. 4. (I/Q
2.3. Individuals acting for investment fund managers '\b"‘

The investment fund manager registration requirement doeshmt apply to an
individual acting on behalf of a registered investment fund mana@\/

M.O 2009-04, s. 2.3. 5

PART 3 REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS — IND&QALS

DIVISION 1 General proficiency requirementg\(b

3.1. Definitions (l/

4

In this Part (b
“Branch Manager ProgjyﬁExam” means the examination prepared and

administered by the RESP D s Association of Canada and so named on the
September 28, 2009, and e examination that preceded that examination, or
succeeded that examina@that does not have a significantly reduced scope and
content when compare e scope and content of the first-mentioned examination;

“Canadian tment Funds Course Exam” means the examination prepared
and administer, the IFSE Institute and so named on September 28, 2009, and
every exami&:}'i that preceded that examination, or succeeded that examination, that

does not significantly reduced scope and content when compared to the scope
and co f the first-mentioned examination;

“Canadian Investment Manager designation” means the designation earned

gh the Canadian investment manager program prepared and administered by CSI

bal Education Inc. and so named on the September 28, 2009, and every program

that preceded that program, or succeeded that program, that does not have a

significantly reduced scope and content when compared to the scope and content of the
first-mentioned program;
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“Canadian Securities Course Exam” means the examination prepared and
administered by CSI Global Education Inc. and so named on the September 28, 2009,
and every examination that preceded that examination, or succeeded that examination,
that does not have a significantly reduced scope and content when compared to the
scope and content of the first-mentioned examination;

“Chief Compliance Officers Qualifying Exam” means the examination prep %
and administered by CSI Global Education Inc. and so named on September 28089,
and every examination that preceded that examination, or succeeded that exafigion,
that does not have a significantly reduced scope and content when compared to the
scope and content of the first-mentioned examination; '\ s

“CFA Charter” means the charter earned through the Charteredkinancial Analyst
program prepared and administered by the CFA Institute a named on the
September 28, 2009, and every program that preceded that pr@zr succeeded that
program, that does not have a significantly reduced scope and Qontent when compared
to the scope and content of the first-mentioned program;

“Exempt Market Products Exam” means(¥Qe examination prepared and
administered by the IFSE Institute and so named oN September 28, 2009, and every
examination that preceded that examination, @:ceeded that examination, that does
not have a significantly reduced scope and c%i;ent when compared to the scope and
content of the first-mentioned examinationy\ N

“Investment Funds in Canadikca(()?se Exam” means the examination prepared
and administered by CSI Global ggu®ation Inc. and so named on the September 28,
2009, and every examination t preceded that examination, or succeeded that
examination, that does no a significantly reduced scope and content when
compared to the scope an@otent of the first-mentioned examination;

“Mutual Fund Qrs Compliance Exam” means the examination prepared and
administered by t %E Institute and so named on the September 28, 2009, and every
examination thgt pfsceded that examination, or succeeded that examination, that does
not have a sigNdjeantly reduced scope and content when compared to the scope and
content of ffst-mentioned examination;

@W Entrants Course Exam” means the examination prepared and administered

by % lobal Education Inc. and so named on the September 28, 2009, and every

Ihation that preceded that examination, or succeeded that examination, that does

t have a significantly reduced scope and content when compared to the scope and
content of the first-mentioned examination;

“PDO Exam” means
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(@) the Officers’, Partners’ and Directors’ Exam prepared and administered by
the IFSE Institute and so named on the September 28, 2009, and every examination
that preceded that examination, or succeeded that examination, that does not have a
significantly reduced scope and content when compared to the scope and content of the
first-mentioned examination, or

(b)  the Partners, Directors and Senior Officers Course Exam prepared'@
administered by CSI Global Education Inc. and so named on the September 28¢R089,
and every examination that preceded that examination, or succeeded that exaq%ion,
that does not have a significantly reduced scope and content when compared to the
scope and content of the first-mentioned examination; '\ s

“Sales Representative Proficiency Exam” means the examinathn prepared and
administered by the RESP Dealers Association of Canada a named on the
September 28, 2009, and every examination that preced at examination, or
succeeded that examination, that does not have a S|gn|f|c y reduced scope and
content when compared to the scope and content of the fj r@entloned examination;

“Series 7 Exam” means the examination ared and administered by the
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority in the Unitbq tates of America and so named
on the September 28, 2009, and every exami that preceded that examination, or

succeeded that examination, that does not e a significantly reduced scope and
content when compared to the scope and wwnt of the first-mentioned examination.

M.O 2009-04, s. 3.1; M.O. 2011-03,&&5.

3.2. U.S. equivalency E
In this Part, an indigg\\s! is not required to have passed the Canadian Securities
Course Exam if the inc | has passed the Series 7 Exam and the New Entrants

Course Exam. Q_
Z

M.O 2009-04, s BX

22 |ts on examination requirements

(1) he purpose of this Part, an individual is deemed to have not passed an

exa@‘u on unless the individual passed the examination not more than 36 months
the date of his or her application for registration.

S) Subsection (1) does not apply if the individual passed the examination more than

36 months before the date of his or her application and has met one of the following
conditions:

10
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€) the individual was registered in the same category in any jurisdiction of
Canada at any time during the 36-month period before the date of his or her application;

(b)  the individual has gained 12 months of relevant securities industry
experience during the 36-month period before the date of his or her application.

(3) For the purpose of paragraph (2)(a), an individual is not considered to have l&%
registered during any period in which the individual’s registration was suspendedQ

M.O 2009-04, s. 3.3; M.O. 2011-03, s. 6. b‘ (]/

)
DIVISION 2 Education and experience requirements 4 '\
3.4. Proficiency —initial and ongoing \/
(1)  An individual must not perform an activity that requirebregistration unless the
individual has the education, training and experience t reasonable person would
consider necessary to perform the activity compete INcluding understanding the

structure, features and risks of each security the indi\(IBlaI recommends.

(2) A chief compliance officer must not p an activity set out in section 5.2
unless the individual has the education, traln and experience that a reasonable
person would consider necessary to perfor&the activity competently.

M.O 2009-04, s. 3.4; M.O. 2011-03,3@.
3.5.  Mutual fund dealer —de %representative

A dealing represer@te of a mutual fund dealer must not act as a dealer in
respect of the securities@ in paragraph 7.1(2)(b) unless any of the following apply:

(@) the sentative has passed the Canadian Investment Funds Course
Exam, the Capadidn Securities Course Exam or the Investment Funds in Canada
Course Exa @
he individual has met the requirements of section 3.11,;
C the individual has earned a CFA Charter and has gained 12 months of
%/ant securities industry experience in the 36-month period before applying for
\ istration;

(d) the individual is exempt from section 3.11 because of subsection 16.10(1).

M.O 2009-04, s. 3.5; M.O. 2011-03, s. 8.

11
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3.6. Mutual fund dealer — chief compliance officer

A mutual fund dealer must not designate an individual as its chief compliance
officer under subsection 11.3(1) unless any of the following apply:

(@) the individual has passed

&

(1) the Canadian Investment Funds Course Exam, the 086 n
Securities Course Exam or the Investment Funds in Canada Course Exam, an(f]/

(i) the PDO Exam, the Mutual Fund Dealers Compliange\bkam or the
Chief Compliance Officers Qualifying Exam; 4

(b) the individual has met the requirements of section 3{X;

(© section 3.13 does not apply in respect of thbindividual because of
subsection 16.9(2). &

M.O 2009-04, s. 3.6; M.O. 2011-03, s. 9. (b

3.7.  Scholarship plan dealer — dealing rep tative

A dealing representative of a scholgshjp plan dealer must not act as a dealer in
respect of the securities listed in sectioﬂBl 2)(c) unless the individual has passed the
Sales Representative Proficiency E@.

M.O 2009-04, s. 3.7; M.O. 201193 s. 10.
3.8. Scholarship plan @er — chief compliance officer

A scholarshi dealer must not designate an individual as its chief
compliance officer, er subsection 11.3(1) unless the individual has passed all of the
following:

be Sales Representative Proficiency Exam;

(@)
Q.

Q the Branch Manager Proficiency Exam;

(c) the PDO Exam or the Chief Compliance Officers Qualifying Exam.

N\
M.O 2009-04, s. 3.8; M.O. 2011-03, s. 11.

3.9. Exempt market dealer — dealing representative

12
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A dealing representative of an exempt market dealer must not perform an activity
listed in section 7.1(2)(d) unless any of the following apply:

(@) the individual has passed the Canadian Securities Course Exam;

(b) the individual has passed the Exempt Market Products Exam;

>

(© the individual has earned a CFA Charter and has gained 12 moggs“of
relevant securities industry experience in the 36-month period before ap@)ihg for

registration;
N

(d) the individual satisfies the conditions set out in section 3~E

(e) the individual is exempt from section 3.11 because&gbsection 16.10(1).

M.O 2009-04, s. 3.9; M.O. 2011-03, s. 12. Ob
3.10. Exempt market dealer — chief compliance offi&

An exempt market dealer must not de&&q(?-%te an individual as its chief
compliance officer under subsection 11.3(1) u any of the following apply:

(@ theindividual has passed the'@lpwing:

0] the Exempt Mﬂtef?roducts Exam or the Canadian Securities
Course Exam; and

(i) the P[@ or the Chief Compliance Officers Qualifying Exam;
(b) the individ s met the requirements of section 3.13;

(© sectLQ .13 does not apply in respect of the individual because of

subsection 16.9%2).
M.O 20009, 1 3.10; M.O. 2011-03, s. 13.

3.11. @t olio manager — advising representative

An advising representative of a portfolio manager must not act as an adviser on
half of the portfolio manager unless any of the following apply:

(@) the individual has earned a CFA Charter and has gained 12 months of
relevant investment management experience in the 36-month period before applying for
registration;

13
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(b)  the individual has received the Canadian Investment Manager designation
and has gained 48 months of relevant investment management experience, 12 months
of which was gained in the 36-month period before applying for registration.

M.O 2009-04, s. 3.11; M.O. 2011-03, s. 14.
3.12. Portfolio manager — associate advising representative ,\(b

An associate advising representative of a portfolio manager must not (q% an
adviser on behalf of the portfolio manager unless any of the following apply'b‘
)

(@) the individual has completed Level 1 of the Chartered Fina»ncial Analyst
program and has gained 24 months of relevant investment managemek experience;

(b)  the individual has received the Canadian InvestW‘gPAanager designation
and has gained 24 months of relevant investment management @xperience.

M. 2009-04, s. 3.12; M.O. 2011-03, s. 14. A

3.13. Portfolio manager — chief compliance o fibéb

Q

A portfolio manager must not designa@/an individual as its chief compliance
officer under subsection 11.3(1) unless any\of.the following apply:

(@) the individual has _\(b

0] earned a C QCharter or a professional designation as a lawyer,
Chartered Accountant, Cert General Accountant or Certified Management
Accountant in ajurisdictio@tanada, a notary in Québec, or the equivalent in a foreign

jurisdiction, O
(i) &ed the PDO Exam or the Chief Compliance Officers Qualifying
Exam and, unlas e individual has earned the CFA Charter, the Canadian Securities

Course Exa

C>Q~(iii) either
(A) gained 36 months of relevant securities experience while

@g at an investment dealer, a registered adviser or an investment fund manager,

(B) provided professional services in the securities industry for
36 months and also worked at a registered dealer, a registered adviser or an investment
fund manager for 12 months;

14
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(b) the individual has passed the Canadian Securities Course Exam and
either the PDO Exam ofr the Chief Compliance Officers Qualifying and any of the
following apply:

0] the individual has worked at an investment dealer or a registered
adviser for 5 years, including for 36 months in a compliance capacity; (b

(i) the individual has worked for 5 years at a Canadian fi al
institution in a compliance capacity relating to portfolio management and also \ﬂig'd at
a registered dealer or a registered adviser for 12 months;
)
(© the individual has passed either the PDO Exam or the hl'éﬁ Compliance
Officers Qualifying and has met the requirements of section 3.11.

M.O 2009-04, s. 3.13; M.O. 2011-03, s. 15. 50
3.14. Investment fund manager — chief compliance o 1’@'

An investment fund manager must not de ate an individual as its chief
compliance officer under subsection 11.3(1) unles of the following apply:

(@) the individual has 2)

)
0] earned a CFA Chdg'\r a professional designation as a lawyer,
Chartered Accountant, Certified Qené&fal Accountant or Certified Management
Accountant in a jurisdiction of Cangga,¥a notary in Québec, or the equivalent in a foreign
jurisdiction, %

Exam and, unless the igldW¥ual has earned the CFA Charter, the Canadian Securities

Course Exam, and Q_
(% ither

(A) gained 36 months of relevant securities experience while
workina gistered dealer, a registered adviser or an investment fund manager, or

(i) pas@e PDO Exam or the Chief Compliance Officers Qualifying

Q (B) provided professional services in the securities industry
6 months and also worked in a relevant capacity at an investment fund manager
12 months;

(b)  theindividual has

(1) passed the Canadian Investment Funds Course Exam, the
Canadian Securities Course Exam, or the Investment Funds in Canada Course Exam,

15
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(i) passed the PDO Exam or the Chief Compliance Officers Qualifying
Exam, and

(i)  gained 5 years of relevant securities experience while working at a
registered dealer, registered adviser or an investment fund manager, including 26
months in a compliance capacity. '\

(c) the individual has met the requirements of section 3.13; (]/Q

(c_j) section 3.13 does not apply in respect of the individu&lwe&ause of
subsection 16.9(2). 4
M.O 2009-04, s. 3.14; M.O. 2011-03, a. 16. 0\/
DIVISION 3 Membership in a self-regulatory organization 5

3.15. Who must be approved by an SRO before reg&(a lon

(1) A dealing representative of an investment dé&ibthat is a member of IROC must
be an “approved person” as defined under the of IIROC.

(2) Except in Québec, a dealing repre)%?qtative of a mutual fund dealer that is a
member of the MFDA must be an “appr%e person” as defined under the rules of the

MFDA. _\

M.O 2009-04, s. 3.15; M.O. 20@. 17.

3.16. Exemptions from @qin requirements for SRO-approved persons

(1)  The following Qns do not apply to a registered individual who is a dealing
representative of %Ber of IROC:

(@) G@ection 13.2(3);
ection 13.3;
Q C section 13.13.
1) Subsection (1) only applies to a registered individual who is a dealing
representative of a member of IIROC in respect of a requirement specified in any of

paragraphs (1)(a) to (c) if the registered individual complies with the corresponding
IIROC Provisions that are in effect.

16
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(2)  The following sections do not apply to a registered individual who is a dealing
representative of a member of the MFDA:

(@)  section 13.3;

(b) section 13.13. (b
(2.1) Subsection (2) only applies to a registered individual who is a 'ng
representative of a member of the MFDA in respect of a requirement spéQi in
paragraphs (2)(a) or (b) if the registered individual complies with the cqQrresponding
MFDA Provisions that are in effect. '\&"

3) In Québec, the requirements listed in subsection (2) do not apéw to a registered
individual who is a dealing representative of a mutual fund er to the extent
equivalent requirements to those listed in subsection (2) are apg@ble to the registered
individual under the regulations in Québec.

M.O 2009-04, s. 3.16; M.O. 2011-03, s. 18; M.O. 2012-0‘5\9. .
PART4  RESTRICTIONS ON REGISTERED m&lDUALs

4.1. Restriction on acting for another regélgred firm

N

)
(1) A registered firm must not permign’individual to act as a dealing, advising or
associate advising representative of tne r&gistered firm if the individual

(@) acts as an officer, Ener or director of another registered firm that is not
an affiliate of the first-mentiopeXy®gistered firm, or

(b) IS register a dealing, advising or associate advising representative of
another registered firQ_

(2) Paragra (b) does not apply in respect of a representative whose registration
as a dealing jging or associate advising representative of more than one registered

firm was ggaQteld before July 11, 2011.

M.O 2@09-04, s. 4.1; M.O. 2011-03, s. 19.
Associate advising representatives — pre-approval of advice
}) An associate advising representative of a registered adviser must not advise on

securities unless, before giving the advice, the advice has been approved by an
individual designated by the registered firm under subsection (2).
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(2)  Aregistered adviser must designate, for an associate advising representative, an
advising representative to review the advice of the associate advising representative.

3) No later than the 7™ day following the date of a designation under subsection (2),
a registered adviser must provide the regulator or, in Québec, the securities regulatory
authority with the names of the advising representative and the associate advisi

representative who are the subject of the designation. '\fg

M.O 2009-04, s. 4.2. (]/Q

PART 5 ULTIMATE DESIGNATED PERSON AND CHIEF COMPLI&I‘%E‘

OFFICER
4

5.1. Responsibilities of the ultimate designated person \/
The ultimate designated person of a registered firm musbo all of the following:

(@) supervise the activities of the firm that'gge directed towards ensuring
compliance with securities legislation by the firm and@jch individual acting on the firm’s

behalf; f\

(b) promote compliance by the firm,Qprd individuals acting on its behalf, with
securities legislation. N

M.O 2009-04, s. 5.1. _\(b

5.2. Responsibilities of the@{?ﬁ‘compliance officer

The chief complian@‘ficer of a registered firm must do all of the following:

(@) establi maintain policies and procedures for assessing compliance
by the firm, and in als acting on its behalf, with securities legislation;

(b) &or and assess compliance by the firm, and individuals acting on its

behalf, Wit? egurities legislation;

@ report to the ultimate designated person of the firm as soon as possible if
the %ie compliance officer becomes aware of any circumstances indicating that the
i r any individual acting on its behalf, may be in non-compliance with securities

@Iaﬁon and any of the following apply:

(1) the non-compliance creates, in the opinion of a reasonable person,
a risk of harm to a client;
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(i) the non-compliance creates, in the opinion of a reasonable person,
a risk of harm to the capital markets;

(i) the non-compliance is part of a pattern of non-compliance;

(d) submit an annual report to the firm’s board of directors, or individu
acting in a similar capacity for the firm, for the purpose of assessing compliance b
firm, and individuals acting on its behalf, with securities legislation.

Q
M.O 2009-04, s. 5.2. (]/

)
PART 6 SUSPENSION AND REVOCATION OF REGISTRATI(ﬂ—'MDIVIDUALS

6.1. If individual ceases to have authority to act for firm \/

If a registered individual ceases to have authority to acté a registered individual
on behalf of his or her sponsoring firm because of th of, or a change in, the
individual's employment, partnership, or agency rélionship with the firm, the
individual's registration with the firm is suspendedgyytil reinstated or revoked under
securities legislation. N

M.O 2009-04, s. 6.1. Q/Q

6.2. If IROC approval is revoked or(%%ended

If IROC revokes or suspe reglstered individual’'s approval in respect of an
investment dealer, the |nd|v registration as a dealing representative of the
investment dealer is suspenSe til reinstated or revoked under securities legislation.

M.O 2009-04, s. 6.2.

6.3. If MFDA apqgj is revoked or suspended

Excep @uébec, if the MFDA revokes or suspends a registered individual's
approval i ect of a mutual fund dealer, the individual’'s registration as a dealing
represen of the mutual fund dealer is suspended until reinstated or revoked under

secl gislation.
@ 09-04, s. 6.3.

6.4. If sponsoring firm is suspended

If a registered firm’s registration in a category is suspended, the registration of
each registered dealing, advising or associate advising representative acting on behalf
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of the firm in that category is suspended until reinstated or revoked under securities
legislation.

M.O 2009-04, s. 6.4.

6.5. Dealing and advising activities suspended

If an individual’s registration in a category is suspended, the individual{ag\vt
y.

act as a dealer, an underwriter or an adviser, as the case may be, under that c

M.O 2009-04, s. 6.5. '\b“'
6.6. Revocation of a suspended registration —individual ~\

If a registration of an individual has been suspended ug@this Part and it has
not been reinstated, the registration is revoked on the anniversary of the

suspension.
<O

M.O 2009-04, s. 6.6.
N

6.7. Exception for individuals involved in(zi;@ring or proceeding

Despite section 6.6, if a hearingy of proceeding concerning a suspended
registrant is commenced under securitie‘ge islation or under the rules of an SRO, the
registrant’s registration remains suspendéd.

M.O 2009-04, s. 6.7; M.O. 201193¥s. 21.

6.8. Application of Par@ﬁ Ontario

Other than segt Q.5, this Part does not apply in Ontario.
Ve

M.O 2009-04, s GX

PART 7 CC}%EGORIES OF REGISTRATION FOR FIRMS

7.1.Q:er categories

The following are the categories of registration for a person that is required,
der securities legislation, to be registered as a dealer:

(@) investment dealer;

(b) mutual fund dealer;
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(© scholarship plan dealer;
(d) exempt market dealer;
(e) restricted dealer.
(2) A person registered in the category of '\(b

(@) investment dealer may act as a dealer or an underwriter in respefc&any

security,
)

(b) mutual fund dealer may act as a dealer in respect of aniie&fity of

() a mutual fund, or 0\/

(i) an investment fund that is a labour-spogkored investment fund
corporation or labour-sponsored venture capital corp @n under legislation of a
jurisdiction of Canada,

(© scholarship plan dealer may act as ebégler in respect of a security of a
scholarship plan, an educational plan or an ed nal trust,

(d)  exempt market dealer may y\ N

0] act as a dealer Ry trading a security that is distributed under an
exemption from the prospectus rw ment, whether or not a prospectus was filed in

respect of the distribution, ;

(i) act a ealer by trading a security that, if the trade were a
distribution, would be e from the prospectus requirement,

(i) % elve an order from a client to sell a security that was acquired by
the client in a cigcuistance described in subparagraph (i) or (ii), and may act or solicit in
furtherance a.) iving such an order, and

Iv)  act as an underwriter in respect of a distribution of securities that is
mad&@er an exemption from the prospectus requirement;

(e) restricted dealer may act as a dealer or an underwriter in accordance with
terms, conditions, restrictions or requirements applied to its registration.

3) (paragraph revoked).

(4) Subsection (1) does not apply in Ontario.
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M.O 2009-04, s. 7.1; M.O. 2011-03, s. 22.
7.2. Adviser categories

(1) The following are the categories of registration for a person that is required,
under securities legislation, to be registered as an adviser: (b

(b) restricted portfolio manager. (]/

N>

(@) portfolio manager may act as an adviser in respecthy security, and

(@) portfolio manager;
(2) A person registered in the category of 4

(b) restricted portfolio manager may act as an a&ser in respect of any
security in accordance with the terms, conditions, restrict'(@)r requirements applied to
its registration. '{

(3)  Subsection (1) does not apply in Ontario. f\(b

M.O 2009-04, 5. 7.2. 2)

N+

7.3. Investment fund manager categ‘%y

The category of registrati ~‘or a person that is required, under securities
legislation, to be registered aQ\¥n investment fund manager is “investment fund
manager”.

Q
M.O 2009-04, s. 7.3.
PART 8 EXE@BONS FROM THE REQUIREMENT TO REGISTER
DIVISION 1 ptions from dealer and underwriter registration
8.1. | Qp'retation of “trade” in Québec
In"this Part, in Québec, “trade” refers to any of the following activities:

s (@) the activities described in the definition of “dealer” in section 5 of the
Securities Act (chapter V-1.1), including the following activities:

0] the sale or disposition of a security by onerous title, whether the
terms of payment are on margin, installment or otherwise, but does not include a
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transfer or the giving in guarantee of securities in connection with a debt or the
purchase of a security, except as provided in paragraph (b);

(i) participation as a trader in any transaction in a security through the
facilities of an exchange or a quotation and trade reporting system;

(i) the receipt by a registrant of an order to buy or sell a security; '\(b

(b)  a transfer or the giving in guarantee of securities of an issuerﬂ'& the
holdings of a control person in connection with a debt. b‘
)

8.2. Definition of “securities” in Alberta, British Cqumbia@wBrunswick and

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.1.

Saskatchewan 5
Despite section 1.2, in Alberta, British Col , New Brunswick and
Saskatchewan, a reference to “securities” in this’{iwsion excludes “exchange

contracts”.
N

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.2. Q

8.3. Interpretation —exemption from u&je,rwriter registration requirement

In this Division, an exemptio f(r?n the dealer registration requirement is an
exemption from the underwriter regigtration requirement.

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.3. @

8.4. Personnotint ﬁness of trading in British Columbia, Manitoba and
New Brunswick

(2) In Britis &meia and New Brunswick, a person is exempt from the dealer
registration r ment if the person

iS not engaged in the business of trading in securities or exchange
cont& a principal or agent, and

(b)  does not hold himself, herself or itself out as engaging in the business of
ding in securities or exchange contracts as a principal or agent.

(2) In Manitoba, a person is exempt from the dealer registration requirement if the
person
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(@) is not engaged in the business of trading in securities as a principal or
agent, and

(b)  does not hold himself, herself or itself out as engaging in the business of
trading in securities as a principal or agent.

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.4.
N

8.5. Trades through or to aregistered dealer (]/Q

The dealer registration requirement does not apply to a person Rb!sbect of a
trade by the person if one of the following applies:

(@) the trade is made solely through an agent who is a r Wered dealer, if the
dealer is registered in a category that permits the trade; 6

(b)  the trade is made to a registered dealer w purchasmg as principal, if
the dealer is registered in a category that permits the tr

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.5. r\(b
8.6. Investment fund trades by adviser to(rlanaged account

(1)  The dealer registration requiremeﬁ? es not apply to a registered adviser, or an
adviser that is exempt from reglstratl nder section 8.26, in respect of a trade in a
security of an investment fund if b the following apply:

(@) the adviser acts $ fund’s adviser and investment fund manager,

(b) the trade i managed account of a client of the adviser.

(2) The exemgﬁg In subsection (1) is not available if the managed account or
investment fun created or is used primarily for the purpose of qualifying for the
exemption.

3) Ar@d’viser that relies on subsection (1) must provide written notice to the
regul r, in Québec, the securities regulatory authority that it is relying on the
exeétlon within 10 days of its first use of the exemption.

\@2009-04, s.8.6: M.O. 2011-03, s. 23.
8.7. Investment fund reinvestment

Q) Subject to subsections (2), (3), (4) and (5), the dealer registration requirement
does not apply to an investment fund, or the investment fund manager of the fund, in
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respect of a trade in a security with a security holder of the investment fund if the trade
is permitted by a plan of the investment fund and is in a security of the investment
fund’s own issue and if any of the following apply:

(@) adividend or distribution out of earnings, surplus, capital or other sources
payable in respect of the investment fund’s securities is applied to the purchase of the
security that is of the same class or series as the securities to which the dividen %D
distributions are attributable; Q

(b) the security holder makes an optional cash payment to urcﬁ}se the
security of the investment fund and both of the following apply: '\%"‘

0] the security is of the same class or series of seea‘([ies described in
paragraph (a) that trade on a marketplace; \/

(i) the aggregate number of securities issued}nder the optional cash
payment does not exceed, in the financial year of the in ent fund during which the
trade takes place, 2% of the issued and outstanding se&l les of the class to which the
plan relates as at the beginning of the financial year.(b

(2)  The exemption in subsection (1) is not ble unless the plan that permits the
trade is available to every security holder in C a to which the dividend or distribution
is available. N

(3) The exemption in subsectionQ&ot available if a sales charge is payable on a
trade described in the subsection. v

(4) At the time of the tra It the investment fund is a reporting issuer and in
continuous distribution, thgJiN&estment fund must have set out in the prospectus under
which the distribution is

(@) deta@?ny deferred or contingent sales charge or redemption fee that is
payable at the tyne®f the redemption of the security, and

(b) Ca)y right that the security holder has to elect to receive cash instead of
securitie the payment of a dividend or making of a distribution by the investment
fundé structions on how the right can be exercised.

At the time of the trade, if the investment fund is a reporting issuer and is not in
tinuous distribution, the investment fund must provide the information required by
subsection (4) in its prospectus, annual information form or a material change report.

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.7.
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8.8. Additional investment in investment funds

The dealer registration requirement does not apply to an investment fund, or the
investment fund manager of the fund, in respect of a trade in a security of the
investment fund’s own issue with a security holder of the investment fund if all of the

following apply: (b

(@) the security holder initially acquired securities of the investment f S
principal for an acquisition cost of not less than $150,000 paid in cash at the tiﬁb the
acquisition;

)

(b) the trade is in respect of a security of the same clas or'\eries as the

securities initially acquired, as described in paragraph (a); i

(c) the security holder, as at the date of the trad s@X securities of the
investment fund and one or both of the following apply: 65

0] the acquisition cost of the secur&s being held was not less
than $150,000; (b

(i) the net asset value of securities being held is not less
than $150,000.

4

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.8. (b

8.9. Additional investmentin i ~egtment funds if initial purchase before
September 14, 2005 v

The dealer regis@requirement does not apply in respect of a trade by an

investment fund in a s Ny of its own issue to a purchaser that initially acquired a
security of the same as principal before September 14, 2005 if all of the following
apply: Q

€) curity was initially acquired under any of the following provisions:

)] in Alberta, sections 86(e) and 131(1)(d) of the Securities Act
(R.S. 0, c. S-4) as they existed prior to their repeal by sections 9(a) and 13 of the
Se ies Amendment Act (S.A. 2003, ¢.32), 2003 SA ¢.32 and sections 66.2 and 122.2
@e Alberta Securities Commission Rules (General) (Alta. Reg. 46/87);
N\

(i) in British Columbia, sections 45(2) (5) and (22), and 74(2) (4)
and (19) of the Securities Act (R.S.B.C. 1996, ch. 418);

(i) in Manitoba, sections 19(3) and 58(1)(a) of the Securities Act
(Manitoba) and section 90 of the Securities Regulation MR 491/88R;
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(iv)  in New Brunswick, section 2.8 of Local Rule 45-501 Prospectus
and Registration Exemptions;

(v) in Newfoundland and Labrador, sections 36(1)(e) and 73(1)(d) of
the Securities Act (R.S.N.L. 1990, c. S-13); (b

(vi)  in Nova Scotia, sections 41(1)(e) and 77(1)(d) of the Securi@ ct
(R.S.N.S. 1989, c. 418);

(vii)  in Northwest Territories, section 3(c) and (z) of BIanthbt(Ter No. 1;
(viii) in Nunavut, section 3(c) and (z) of Blanket Order-P‘Q 1;

(ix) in Ontario, sections 35(1)5 and 72(1)(dAN\gy the Securities Act
(R.S.0. 1990, c. S.5) and section 2.12 of Ontario Securities C9mmission Rule 45-501
Exempt Distributions ((2004) 27 OSCB 433) that came in ce on January 12, 2004;

(x) in Prince Edward Island, sectiongd3)(d) of the former Securities Act
(Prince Edward Island) and Prince Edward IB&Q Local Rule 45-512 Exempt
Distributions - Exemption for Purchase of Mutu @nd Securities;

(xi)  in Québec, former secﬂqn§ 51 and 155.1(2) of the Securities Act ;

(xi)) in Saskatchewaﬂks(egions 39(1)(e) and 81(1)(d) of The Securities
Act, 1988 (S.S. 1988-89, c. S-42.2V

(b) the trade is for a rity of the same class or series as the initial trade;

(© the secur@er, as at the date of the trade, holds securities of the
investment fund thatQ_ ne or both of the following characteristics:

by securities I&giglation referred to in paragraph (a) under which the initial trade was

conductedz'

(i) a net asset value of not less than the minimum amount prescribed

by %urlties legislation referred to in paragraph (a) under which the initial trade was
d

\@ cted.

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.9.

(i)'a n acquisition cost of not less than the minimum amount prescribed

8.10. Private investment club
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The dealer registration requirement does not apply in respect of a trade in a
security of an investment fund if all of the following apply:

(@ the fund has no more than 50 beneficial security holders;

(b) the fund does not seek and has never sought to borrow money from tpte)

public; '\

(c) the fund does not distribute and has never distributed its securitéb the
b‘ﬂ

(d) the fund does not pay or give any remuneratio investment

management or administration advice in respect of trades in securiﬁ3§, except normal

brokerage fees; 0\/

(e) the fund, for the purpose of financing its operglons, requires security
holders to make contributions in proportion to the value,c{ecurities held by them.

public;

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.10. (b
8.11. Private investment fund —loan and tr ools

(1)  The dealer registration requiremenfdqes not apply in respect of a trade in a
security of an investment fund if all of thé?jl wing apply:

(@ the fund is admlnlst by a trust company or trust corporation that is
registered or authorized by an e ment of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada to carry
on business in Canada or a jur tion of Canada,;

(b) the fund promoter or investment fund manager other than the trust
company or trust corg_ n referred to in paragraph (a);

(c) thg fOnd commingles the money of different estates and trusts for the
purpose of fgaNg#ng investment.

(2) D@ne subsection (1), a trust company or trust corporation registered under the
laws ince Edward Island that is not registered under the Trust and Loan
Con%xnles Act (Canada) or under comparable legislation in another jurisdiction of
a is not a trust company or trust corporation for the purpose of paragraph (1)(a).
\

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.11.

8.12. Mortgages
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(2) In this section, “syndicated mortgage” means a mortgage in which 2 or more
persons participate, directly or indirectly, as lenders in the debt obligation that is
secured by the mortgage.

(2)  Subject to subsection (3), the dealer registration requirement does not apply in
respect of a trade in a mortgage on real property in a jurisdiction of Canada by a pers
who is registered or licensed, or exempted from registration or licensing, u ﬁg

mortgage brokerage or mortgage dealer legislation of that jurisdiction. Q

3) In Alberta, British Columbia, Manitoba, Québec and Saskatchewa s&ection
(2) does not apply in respect of a trade in a syndicated mortgage. '\%"‘

(4)  This section does not apply in Ontario. ~\

Qv
M.O 2009-04, s. 8.12. 5

8.13. Personal property security legislation O

(1) The dealer registration requirement does n pply in respect of a trade to a
person, other than an individual in a security evi ng indebtedness secured by or
under a security agreement, secured in acc ce with personal property security
legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada that ides for the granting of security in
personal property.

(2)  This section does not apply wQ(go

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.13. \al

8.14. Variableinsuranc@ntract
Q) In this sectionQ_O

“contracty, “Owoup insurance”, “insurance company”, “life insurance” and “policy”
have the res e meanings aSS|gned to them in the legislation referenced opposite

the name e local jurisdiction in Appendix A of Regulation 45-106 respecting
ProspectQand Registration Exemptions (chapter V-1.1, r. 21);

g“varlable iInsurance contract” means a contract of life insurance under which the
@ t of the purchaser is valued for purposes of conversion or surrender by reference
\ he value of a proportionate interest in a specified portfolio of assets.

(2)  The dealer registration requirement does not apply in respect of a trade in a

variable insurance contract by an insurance company if the variable insurance contract
IS
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(@) a contract of group insurance,

(b)  a whole life insurance contract providing for the payment at maturity of an
amount not less than 75% of the premium paid up to age 75 years for a benefit payable
at maturity,

(c) an arrangement for the investment of policy dividends and policy procg{:b
in a separate and distinct fund to which contributions are made only from® y

dividends and policy proceeds, or (]/
(d)  avariable life annuity. '\b‘ s
M.O 2009-04, s. 8.14. ~\

8.15. Schedule lll banks and cooperative associations — exgdéuce of deposit

(1) The dealer registration requirement does not appl respect of a trade in an
evidence of deposit issued by a Schedule Il bank or&association governed by the
Cooperative Credit Associations Act (S.C., 1991, c. 485

(2)  This section does not apply in Ontario. (19
M.O 2009-04, s. 8.15. N
8.16. Plan administrator _\(b

(2) In this section v

“consultant” has t?—@ame meaning as in section 2.22 of Regulation 45-106
respecting Prospectus @ egistration Exemptions (chapter V-1.1, r. 21);

“executive Q " has the same meaning as in section 1.1 of Regulation 45-106
respecting ProspecNs and Registration Exemptions;

assign” has the same meaning as in section 2.22 of
Regulati -106 respecting Prospectus and Registration Exemptions;

“pian” means a plan or program established or maintained by an issuer providing
heé acquisition of securities of the issuer by employees, executive officers, directors
‘Q consultants of the issuer or of a related entity of the issuer;

“plan administrator” means a trustee, custodian, or administrator, acting on

behalf of, or for the benefit of, employees, executive officers, directors or consultants of
an issuer or of a related entity of an issuer;
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“related entity” has the same meaning as in section 2.22 of Regulation 45-106
respecting Prospectus and Registration Exemptions.

(2)  The dealer registration requirement does not apply in respect of a trade made
pursuant to a plan of the issuer in a security of an issuer, or an option to acquire a
security of the issuer, made by the issuer, a control person of the issuer, a related entj

of the issuer, or a plan administrator of the issuer with any of the following: '\P%

@) the issuer; (]9

(b)  a current or former employee, executive officer, director K&t‘lgultant of
the issuer or a related entity of the issuer; !

(© a permitted assign of a person referred to in paragr ).
3) The dealer registration requirement does not appl in&spect of a trade in a
security of an issuer, or an option to acquire a security e issuer, made by a plan
administrator of the issuer if &
(@) the trade is pursuant to a plan of the ia@r, and

(b) the conditions in section 2.14 o(%egulation 45-102 respecting Resale of
Securities (chapter V-1.1, r. 20) are satisfiq% N

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.16; M.O. 2011-03",_{2?
8.17. Reinvestment plan v

(1)  Subject to subsecti@@), (4) and (5), the dealer registration requirement does
not apply in respect on llowing trades by an issuer, or by a trustee, custodian or

administrator acting n behalf of the issuer, to a security holder of the issuer if the
trades are permitt a plan of the issuer:

(@) %de in a security of the issuer’s own issue if a dividend or distribution

out of earRiQgd, surplus, capital or other sources payable in respect of the issuer’s
securitie pplied to the purchase of the security;
g subject to subsection (2), a trade in a security of the issuer’'s own issue if
security holder makes an optional cash payment to purchase the security of the

\%er that trades on a marketplace.

(2) The aggregate number of securities issued under the optional cash payment
referred to in subsection (1)(b) must not exceed, in any financial year of the issuer
during which the trade takes place, 2% of the issued and outstanding securities of the
class to which the plan relates as at the beginning of the financial year.
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(3) A plan that permits the trades described in subsection (1) must be available to
every security holder in Canada to which the dividend or distribution out of earnings,
surplus, capital or other sources is available.

4) This section is not available in respect of a trade in a security of an investm(?gt
fund.

(5) Subject to section 8.4 of Regulation 45-106 respecting Prospe Qand
Registration Exemptions (chapter V-1.1, r. 21), if the security traded plan
described in subsection (1) is of a different class or series than the class r’?es of the
security to which the dividend or distribution is attributable, the issugr ow the trustee,
custodian or administrator must have provided to each participamjhat is eligible to
receive a security under the plan either a description of the |aI attributes and
characteristics of the security traded under the plan or notice o%&mrce from which the
participant can obtain the information without charge.

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.17; M.O. 2011-03, s. 25. &
8.18. International dealer '\(b

(1) In this section Q/Q

“Canadian permitted client” m e% a permitted client referred to in any of
paragraphs (a) to (e), (g) or (i) to (r) o efinition of “permitted client” in section 1.1 if

(@) in the case of an@ﬁal, the individual is a resident of Canada;

(b) in the case rust, the terms of the trust expressly provide that those
terms are governed by ws of a jurisdiction of Canada,;

(© in a Q her case, the permitted client is incorporated, organized or
continued undepth&Naws of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada;

“for ? ecurity” means

a security issued by an issuer incorporated, formed or created under the
law aforelgnjurlsdlctlon or

\s (b) a security issued by a government of a foreign jurisdiction.

(2)  Subject to subsections (3) and (4), the dealer registration requirement does not
apply in respect of any of the following:
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(@) an activity, other than a sale of a security, that is reasonably necessary to
facilitate a distribution of securities that are offered primarily in a foreign jurisdiction;

(b) a trade in a debt security with a Canadian permitted client during the
security’s distribution, if the debt security is offered primarily in a foreign jurisdiction and
a prospectus has not been filed with a Canadian securities regulatory authority for the
distribution; '\Pb

(c) a trade in a debt security that is a foreign security with a C@diam

permitted client, other than during the security’s distribution;
)

(d) a trade in a foreign security with a Canadian permitted cli{e\t, unless the
trade is made during the security’s distribution under a prospectus<#gt has been filed
with a Canadian securities regulatory authority; 0\/

(e) atrade in a foreign security with an investment deger;
) a trade in any security with an investment(ﬁ@ie: r that is acting as principal.

3) The exemption under subsection (2) is not ahgﬂable to a person unless all of the
following apply:

(@) the head office or principal p}(;g of business of the person is in a foreign
jurisdiction;

(b) the person is regis ?&under the securities legislation of the foreign
jurisdiction in which its head offi %r principal place of business is located in a category

of registration that permits it toON&rry on the activities in that jurisdiction that registration
as a dealer would permit i rry on in the local jurisdiction;

(c) the pe%gages in the business of a dealer in the foreign jurisdiction in
which its head offiQ principal place of business is located;

(d) rson is acting as principal or as agent for
Q~(i) the issuer of the securities,
Q (i) a permitted client, or
\é (i)  a person that is not a resident of Canada;
(e) the person has submitted to the securities regulatory authority a

completed Form 31-103F2 Submission to Jurisdiction and Appointment of Agent for
Service.
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(4)  The exemption under subsection (2) is not available to a person in respect of a
trade with a Canadian permitted client unless one of the following applies:

(@) the Canadian permitted client is a person registered under the securities
legislation of a jurisdiction of Canada as an adviser or dealer;

(b)  the person has notified the Canadian permitted client of all of\ﬁb

following: Q

(1) the person is not registered in the local jurisdiction o rg]&e the

trade; S
N

(i) the foreign jurisdiction in which the head office o-hkrincipal place of
business of the person is located;

(i) all or substantially all of the assets of the}erson may be situated
outside of Canada;

(iv)  there may be difficulty enforcirag..)legal rights against the person
because of the above;

(v) the name and address oﬂbe agent for service of process of the
person in the local jurisdiction. N

(5) A person that relied on the_e&e?ﬂ%tion in subsection (2) during the 12 month
period preceding December 1 of ar must notify the regulator or, in Québec, the
securities regulatory authority of act by December 1 of that year.

) does not apply to a person that complies with the filing
and fee payment requig s applicable to an unregistered exempt international firm
under Ontario Securip mmission Rule 13-502 Fees.

(7)  The advj egegistration requirement does not apply to a person that is exempt
from the dea istration requirement under this section if the person provides advice
to a client e advice is

Q in connection with an activity or trade described under subsection (2), and
(b) not in respect of a managed account of the client.

N\
M.O 2009-04, s. 8.18; M.O. 2011-03, s. 26.

8.19. Self-directed registered education savings plan
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(2) In this section “self-directed RESP” means an educational savings plan
registered under the Income Tax Act (R.S.C. 1985, c. 1 (5th Suppl.))

(@) that is structured so that contributions by a subscriber to the plan are
deposited directly into an account in the name of the subscriber, and

(b) under which the subscriber maintains control and direction over the@
that enables the subscriber to direct how the assets of the plan are to be held, ir@s d

or reinvested subject to compliance with the Income Tax Act. (]/
(2)  The dealer registration requirement does not apply in respect of a tr&fe"in a self-
directed RESP to a subscriber if both of the following apply: 4 '\

(@) the trade is made by any of the following: \/

(1) a dealing representative of a mutual fundbealer who is acting on
behalf of the mutual fund dealer in respect of securitiesliit@n paragraph 7.1(2)(b);

(i) a Canadian financial institution; (b
(i) in Ontario, a financial inte% ry;

(b)  the self-directed RESP restriﬁs.jts investments in securities to securities
in which the person who trades the self-d‘;lfc ed RESP is permitted to trade.

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.19: M.O. 2011-$:s\.27.

8.20. Exchange contract — rta, British Columbia, New Brunswick and

Saskatchewan @

(2) In Alberta, i Columbia and New Brunswick, the dealer registration
requirement does pply in respect of the following trades in exchange contracts:

G%de by a person made

(a)
%(i) solely through an agent who is a registered dealer, if the dealer is
regizl a category that permits the trade, or
(i) to a registered dealer who is purchasing as principal, if the dealer is
\ istered in a category that permits the trade;
(b) subject to subsection (2), a trade resulting from an unsolicited order

placed with an individual who is not a resident of, and does not carry on business in, the
local jurisdiction.
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(2)  Anindividual referred to in subsection (1)(b) must not do any of the following:

(@) advertise or engage in promotional activity that is directed to persons in
the local jurisdiction during the 6 months preceding the trade;

(b) pay any commission or finder’s fee to any person in the local jurisdiction
connection with the trade. '\(g

(3) In Saskatchewan, the dealer registration requirement does not apply in ré'i/ t of
either of the following:

(@) atrade in an exchange contract made solely through gbent who is a
registered dealer, if the dealer is registered in a category that permlt?ie trade;

(b) a trade in an exchange contract made to a r%éered dealer who is
purchasing as principal, if the dealer is registered in a category Dat permits the trade.

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.20. A
8.21. Specified debt f\(b

(1) In this section Q/Q

4
“designated rating” has the saméékaning as in Regulation 81-102 respecting
Mutual Funds (chapter V-1.1, r. 39)_\

“designated rating organi %ﬁ has the same meaning as in Regulation 81-102
respecting Mutual Funds;

respecting Designat ng Organizations (chapter V-1.1, r. 8.1);

“DRO affiliat(ﬁ same meaning as in section 1 of Regulation 25-101

“permitte, s%ranational agency” means any of the following:

€)) be African Development Bank, established by the Agreement Establishing
the Afrii evelopment Bank which came into force on September 10, 1964, that

Cango@ betame a member of on December 30, 1982;

(b)  the Asian Development Bank, established under a resolution adopted by
United Nations Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific in 1965;

(© the Caribbean Development Bank, established by the Agreement

Establishing the Caribbean Development Bank which came into force on
January 26, 1970, as amended, that Canada is a founding member of;
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(d) the European Bank for Reconstruction and Development, established by
the Agreement Establishing the European Bank for Reconstruction and Development
and approved by the European Bank for Reconstruction and Development Agreement
Act (S.C. 1991, c. 12), that Canada is a founding member of;

(e) the Inter-American Development Bank, established by the Agreem
establishing the Inter-American Development Bank which became effe %Sg)
December 30, 1959, as amended from time to time, that Canada is a member of;

() the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development esqﬂlshed
by the Agreement for an International Bank for Reconstruction an%z\lﬁwélopment
approved by the Bretton Woods and Related Agreements Act (R.S.C. c. B-7);

(@) the International Finance Corporation, establi by Articles of
Agreement approved by the Bretton Woods and Related Agree. s Act.

(2)  The dealer registration requirement does not appl @spect of a trade in any of
the following: '{

(@) a debt security issued by or guarantebgay the Government of Canada or
the government of a jurisdiction of Canada;

(b)  a debt security issued by ongyaranteed by a government of a foreign
jurisdiction if the debt security has z(?Se ignated rating from a designated rating
organization or its DRO affiliate; _\

(c) a debt security is %by or guaranteed by a municipal corporation in
Canada;

(d) a debt se@ecured by or payable out of rates or taxes levied under
the law of a jUI’ISdIC% Canada on property in the jurisdiction and collectible by or

through the munic In which the property is situated;

(e) %bt security issued by or guaranteed by a Canadian financial institution
or a Sch @ bank, other than debt securities that are subordinate in right of
payme§> posits held by the issuer or guarantor of those debt securities;

a debt security issued by the Comité de gestion de la taxe scolaire de I'lle

@Iontreal
N\

(g) a debt security issued by or guaranteed by a permitted supranational
agency if the debt securities are payable in the currency of Canada or the United States
of America.

(3) Paragraphs (2)(a), (c) and (d) do not apply in Ontario.
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M.O 2009-04, s. 8.21; M.O. 2013-09, s. 1.
8.22. Small security holder selling and purchase arrangements
(1) In this section

“exchange” means Q

(@) TSX Inc.,
b‘ﬂ
(b) TSX Venture Exchange Inc., or 4 '\
(c)  anexchange that \/
(1) has a policy that is substantially similar to tb policy of the TSX Inc.,
and
(ii) is designated by the securities regu@ory authority for the purpose of
this section;

“policy” means, Q/Q

)
(@) in the case of TSX Inc. '}tions 638 and 639 [Odd lot selling and
purchase arrangements] of the TSX Company Manual, as amended from time to time,

(b) in the case of QTSX Venture Exchange Inc., Policy 5.7 Small
Shareholder Selling and Purgh Arrangements, as amended from time to time, or

(© in the cas
“exchange”, the rul
shareholder sellin

n exchange referred to in paragraph (c) of the definition of
cy or other similar instrument of the exchange on small
purchase arrangements.

(2) The d registration requirement does not apply in respect of a trade by an
issuer or i nt, in securities of the issuer that are listed on an exchange, if all of the
followi ép&y:

n
Q the trade is an act in furtherance of participation by the holders of the
@ln ies in an arrangement that is in accordance with the policy of that exchange;

(b)  the issuer and its agent do not provide advice to a security holder about
the security holder’s participation in the arrangement referred to in paragraph (a), other
than a description of the arrangement’s operation, procedures for participation in the
arrangement, or both;
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(c) the trade is made in accordance with the policy of that exchange, without
resort to an exemption from, or variation of, the significant subject matter of the policy;

(d) at the time of the trade after giving effect to a purchase under the
arrangement, the market value of the maximum number of securities that a security
holder is permitted to hold in order to be eligible to participate in the arrangement is ngt
more than $25,000. ?‘%

(3) For the purposes of subsection (2)(c), an exemption from, or varlatl(ﬁl( the
maximum number of securities that a security holder is permitted to hold u policy
in order to be eligible to participate in the arrangement provided for in the\POfcy is not
an exemption from, or variation of, the significant subject matter of thi %/

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.22; M.O. 2011-03, s. 28. 0\/
DIVISION 2 Exemptions from adviser registration
8.23. Dealer without discretionary authority &
The adviser registration requirement does Na'?pply to a registered dealer, or a
dealing representative acting on behalf of the r that provides advice to a client if

the advice is

(@) in connection with a trﬂ; |n a security that the dealer and the
representative are permitted to make ﬂ r his, her or its registration,

(b) provided by the re @tatlve and

(c) not in respec@v managed account of the client.

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.2?_O

8.24. 1IROC mgmDBers with discretionary authority

Th yJser registration requirement does not apply to a registered dealer, or a
dealing entative acting on behalf of the dealer, that acts as an adviser in respect
of a ’ managed account if the registered dealer is a member of IIROC and the
advigng activities are conducted in accordance with the rules of IIROC.

\@ 2009-04. S. 8.24.

8.25. Advising generally

(2) For the purposes of subsections (3) and (4), “financial or other interest” includes
the following:
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(@  ownership, beneficial or otherwise, in the security or in another security
issued by the same issuer;

(b)  an option in respect of the security or another security issued by the same

>

(© a commission or other compensation received, or expected@ e
received, from any person in connection with the trade in the security; (]/

issuer;

(d)  afinancial arrangement regarding the security with any per§§rb‘ s

(e) afinancial arrangement with any underwriter or other pekon who has any
interest in the security. \/

(2)  The adviser registration requirement does not apply _to bperson that acts as an
adviser if the advice the person provides does not purpg, e tailored to the needs of
the person receiving the advice.

3) If a person that is exempt under subsectioN(? recommends buying, selling or
holding a specified security, a class of securiti @the securities of a class of issuers in
which any of the following has a financial or o&interest, the person must disclose the
interest concurrently with providing the ad\,;ir\e'.,

(@) the person; _\(b

(b)  any partner, dire(@fﬁcer of the person;

(c) any other p that would be an insider of the first-mentioned person if
the first-mentioned pers, re a reporting issuer.

4) If the flnan%%other interest of the person includes an interest in an option
described in p ph (b) of the definition of “financial or other interest” in subsection
(1), the discl required by subsection (3) must include a description of the terms of
the option

@5 section does not apply in Ontario.

(5)
@%09-04, s. 8.25.

8.26. International adviser

(1) Despite section 1.2, in Alberta, British Columbia, New Brunswick and
Saskatchewan, a reference to “securities” in this section excludes “exchange contracts”.
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(2) In this section

“aggregate consolidated gross revenue” does not include the gross revenue of
an affiliate of the adviser if the affiliate is registered in a jurisdiction of Canada,;

“Canadian permitted client” means a permitted client referred to in any Qf
paragraphs (a) to (c), (e), (g) or (i) to (r) of the definition of “permitted clien&
section 1.1 if

€) in the case of an individual, the individual is a resident of Can da;q/
)

(b) in the case of a trust, the terms of the trust expressly ro{/Ne that those
terms are governed by the laws of a jurisdiction of Canada; and

(c) in any other case, the permitted client is in‘:g@(ated, organized or
continued under the laws of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada

“foreign security” means &

(@) a security issued by an issuer incor (;%d, formed or created under the
laws of a foreign jurisdiction, and (l/

(b)  asecurity issued by a goverr&eqt of a foreign jurisdiction;

(3)  The adviser registration requ%n t does not apply to a person in respect of its
acting as an adviser to a Canadi mitted client if the adviser does not advise that
client on securities of Canadian ?grs, unless providing that advice is incidental to its
providing advice on a foreign SS&Nrity.

(4) The exemption subsection (3) is not available unless all of the following

apply: Q_

(@) tr@l iser's head office or principal place of business is in a foreign

jurisdiction; O
he adviser is registered or operates under an exemption from registration,
unde Securities legislation of the foreign jurisdiction in which its head office or
prin%a place of business is located, in a category of registration that permits it to carry
he activities in that jurisdiction that registration as an adviser would permit it to carry
\Q in the local jurisdiction;

(© the adviser engages in the business of an adviser in the foreign
jurisdiction in which its head office or principal place of business is located;
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(d) as at the end of its most recently completed financial year, not more
than 10% of the aggregate consolidated gross revenue of the adviser, its affiliates and
its affiliated partnerships was derived from the portfolio management activities of the
adviser, its affiliates and its affiliated partnerships in Canada;

(e) before advising a client, the adviser notifies the client of all of the
following:

0] the adviser is not registered in the local jurisdiction to prd\lllg the

advice described under subsection (3);
N

(i) the foreign jurisdiction in which the adviser’s head of%e or principal
place of business is located,; ~\

(i)  all or substantially all of the adviser’s sés may be situated
outside of Canada,; S

(iv)  there may be difficulty enforcing &aQrights against the adviser
because of the above; (b

(v) the name and address of deiser’s agent for service of process
in the local jurisdiction;

)
)] the adviser has submit%\o the securities regulatory authority a
completed Form 31-103F2 Submisiikn Jurisdiction and Appointment of Agent for

Service. ?“

(5) A person that relied ,0 e exemption in subsection (3) during the 12 month
period preceding Decem of a year must notify the regulator or, in Québec, the
securities regulatory au of that fact by December 1 of that year.

(6) In Ontario, %e‘ction (5) does not apply to a person that complies with the filing
and fee payme:t réquirements applicable to an unregistered exempt international firm

under Ontari rities Commission Rule 13-502 Fees.
M.O 2@% s. 8.26; M.O. 2011-03, s. 29.
DIV: 3 Exemptions from investment fund manager registration

\@. Private investment club

The investment fund manager registration requirement does not apply to a
person in respect of its acting as an investment fund manager for an investment fund if
all of the following apply:
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(@) the fund has no more than 50 beneficial security holders;

(b)  the fund does not seek and has never sought to borrow money from the
public;

(© the fund does not distribute and has never distributed its securities to t};g

ublic;
g N

(d) the fund does not pay or give any remuneration for inﬁ?]ent
management or administration advice in respect of trades in securities, except*hormal
brokerage fees; N s

(e) the fund, for the purpose of financing its operations,J(equires security
holders to make contributions in proportion to the value of the 5(936@5 held by them.

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.27. 5

<O

(2) In this section, “capital accumulation plan” h{ebns a tax assisted investment or
savings plan, including a defined contribuj registered pension plan, a group
registered retirement savings plan, a group r¢gistered education savings plan, or a
deferred profit-sharing plan, established a,plan sponsor that permits a member to
make investment decisions among 2 or ﬂ?r investment options offered within the plan,
and in Quebec and Manitoba, include4 a SImplified pension plan.

8.28. Capital accumulation plan exemption

(2)  The investment fund m %Er registration requirement does not apply to a
person that acts as an invest fund manager for an investment fund if the person is
only required to be regist s an investment fund manager because the investment
fund is an investment o In a capital accumulation plan.

M.O 2009-04, s. 8&

8.29. Priva&)@estment fund —loan and trust pools

(2) T estment fund manager registration requirement does not apply to a trust
com trust corporation that administers an investment fund if all of the following
ap

\e (@) the trust company or trust corporation is registered or authorized by an
enactment of Canada or a jurisdiction of Canada to carry on business in Canada or a
jurisdiction of Canada;

(b) the fund has no promoter or investment fund manager other than the trust
company or trust corporation;
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(c) the fund commingles the money of different estates and trusts for the
purpose of facilitating investment.

(2) The exemption in subsection (1) is not available to a trust company or trust
corporation registered under the laws of Prince Edward Island unless it is algo
registered under the Trust and Loan Companies Act (Canada) (S.C. 1991, c. 4 %D
under comparable legislation in another jurisdiction of Canada. Q

N>

(3)  This section does not apply in Ontario.

M.O 2009-04, s. 8.29; M.O. 2011-03, s. 31. 4
DIVISION 4 Mobility exemption — firms 0\/
8.30. Client mobility exemption —firms 5

The dealer registration requirement and the advﬁgr registration requirement do
not apply to a person if all of the following apply: (b

(@) the person is registered as a dea @ adviser in its principal jurisdiction;

(b)  the person does not act as ;\dealer, underwriter or adviser in the local
jurisdiction other than as it is permitte(fy) n its principal jurisdiction according to its

registration; !

(c) the person does zct as a dealer, underwriter or adviser in the local
10 or fewer eligible clients;

jurisdiction other than in resge
(d) the perso plies with Parts 13 and 14;

(e) the n deals fairly, honestly and in good faith in the course of its
dealings with aryeli§ible client.
M.O 2009?{: ;S; 8.30.
PAF% MEMBERSHIP IN A SELF-REGULATORY ORGANIZATION

% IIROC membership for investment dealers

An investment dealer must not act as a dealer unless the investment dealer is a
“Dealer Member”, as defined under the rules of IIROC.

M.O 2009-04, s. 9.1.
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9.2. MFDA membership for mutual fund dealers

Except in Québec, a mutual fund dealer must not act as a dealer unless the
mutual fund dealer is a “member”, as defined under the rules of the MFDA.

M.O 2009-04, s. 9.2.

N

9.3. Exemptions from certain requirements for IROC members Q
(2) Unless it is also registered as an investment fund manager, a registered ffm that
is a member of IIROC is exempt from the following requirements: '\&

(@) section 12.1; ~\

(b)  section 12.2; 50\/
(c)  section 12.3; O
(d)  section 12.6; &

N

(e)  section 12.7;

() section 12.10; y\ N
(g) section 12.11; _\

(h)  section 12.12; v

0] subsection ]@Q
() section QL@

(K) tioR 13.12;

Cs,%)n 13.13;
Q® section 13.15;

(m)  subsection 14.2(2);
(n)  section 14.6;
(o)  section 14.8;

(p)  section 14.9;
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(q)  section 14.12.

(1.1) Subsection (1) only applies to a registered firm in respect of a requirement
specified in any of paragraphs (1)(a) to (q) if the registered firm complies with the
corresponding IIROC Provisions that are in effect. (b

(2) Despite subsection (1), if a registered firm is a member of IIROC gﬁv\is
registered as an investment fund manager, the firm is exempt from the (\7{/ ing

requirements:
o

€) section 12.3; 4
(b)  section 12.6; 0\/
(c) section 12.12; 5

(d) subsection 13.2(3);

(e)  section 13.3; '\(b
. Q

) section 13.12; q/

(g)  section 13.13; (b'\ K

(h)  section 13.15; “\

0] subsection 14. (Qv

0) section 1

(K) secti .8;

G@bn 14.9;

()
é§~:ection 14.12.
(2.1 ubsection (2) only applies to a registered firm in respect of a requirement

cifled in any of paragraphs (2)(a) to (m) if the registered firm complies with the
\ responding IIROC Provisions that are in effect.

3) (paragpraph revoked).

(4)  (paragpraph revoked).
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(5) (paragpraph revoked).

(6) (paragpraph revoked).

M.O 2009-04, s. 9.3; M.O. 2011-03, s. 32; M.O. 2012-01, s. 3.

9.4. Exemptions from certain requirements for MFDA members '\(b
(1) Unless it is also registered as an exempt market dealer, a scholar(Z%plan
dealer or an investment fund manager, a registered firm that is a member gf the/ MFDA
is exempt from the following requirements: '\&"

@) section 12.1; ~\

(b)  section 12.2; 50\/

(c) section 12.3; O

(d)  section 12.6; (b&

(e)  section 12.7; (19'\

() section 12.10; (b'\ N

(g) section 12.11; _\

(h)  section 12.12; v
0] section 13.3@
() section@;@;

(K) sestion 13.13;
0] Cs}ction 13.15;

Q@ subsection 14.2(2);

(n)  section 14.6;
(o)  section 14.8;
(p)  section 14.9;

(q)  section 14.12.
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(1.1) Subsection (1) only applies to a registered firm in respect of a requirement
specified in any of paragraphs (1)(a) to (q) if the registered firm complies with the
corresponding MFDA Provisions that are in effect.

market dealer, scholarship plan dealer or investment fund manager, the firm is ex
from the following requirements: Q

N>

(2) If a registered firm is a member of the MFDA and is registered as an ex;&%

€) section 12.3;

(b) section 12.6; 4
()  section 13.3; 0\/
(d) section 13.12; 5

(e) section 13.13;
) section 13.15; Q'\(b

(9) subsection 14.2(2); Q/

(h)  section 14.6; (b

(1) section 14.8; 4

()] section 14.9; @V
(K) section 1 @

(2.1) Subsection&ﬂly applies to a registered firm in respect of a requirement
specified in any oNparagraphs (2)(a) to (k) if the registered firm complies with the
correspondi %DA Provisions that are in effect.

tions (1) and (2) do not apply in Québec.
(4) gln Québec, the requirements listed in subsection (1) do not apply to a mutual

ealer to the extent equivalent requirements to those listed in subsection (1) are
plicable to the mutual fund dealer under the regulations in Québec.

M.O 2011-03, s. 33; M.O. 2012-01, s. 4.
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PART 10 SUSPENSION AND REVOCATION OF REGISTRATION — FIRMS
DIVISION 1 When a firm’s registration is suspended

10.1. Failure to pay fees

(1) In this section, “annual fees” means '\(b

@) in Alberta, the fees required under section 2.1 of the Schedule (&s in

Alta. Reg. 115/95 — Securities Regulation,
)

(b) in British Columbia, the annual fees required under c'\on 22 of the
Securities Regulation, B.C. Reg. 196/97,

(c) in Manitoba, the fees required under paragraph?&/a) of the Manitoba
Fee Regulation, M.R 491\88R,

(d) in New Brunswick, the fees required A‘Qer section 2.2 (c) of Local
Rule 11-501 Fees, (b

(e) in Newfoundland and Labrador, t es required under section 143 of the
Securities Act,

)
) in Nova Scotia, the fees’b’&;uired under Part XIV of the Securities
Regulations (O.I.C. 87-1171), _\

(9) in Northwest Territ Ys?the fees required under sections 1(c) and 1(e) of
iti [ .T. Reg. 066-2008);

the Securities Fee regulatlogs
(h) in Nunav e fees required under section 1(a) of the Schedule
to R-003-2003 to the % ities Fee regulation, R.R.N.W.T. 1990, c.20,

0] in gce Edward Island, the fees required under section 175 of the
Securities Ab P.E.l., Cap. S-3.1,

in Québec, the fees required under section 271.5 of the Québec Securities

Reg (chapter V-1.1, r. 50),

(k) in Saskatchewan, the annual registration fees required to be paid by a
istrant under section 176 of The Securities Regulations (R.R.S. c. S-42.2 Reg. 1),
and

)] in Yukon, the fees required under the Securities Fees Regulations
(O.1.C. 2009\66).
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(2) If a registered firm has not paid the annual fees by the 30th day after the date the
annual fees were due, the registration of the firm is suspended until reinstated or
revoked under securities legislation.

M.O 2009-04, s. 10.1.

10.2. If IROC membership is revoked or suspended ,\(b
If IROC revokes or suspends a registered firm’s membership, t m’s

registration in the category of investment dealer is suspended until reinstdted or

revoked under securities legislation. '\ s

M.O 2009-04, s. 10.2. ~\

10.3. If MFDA membership is revoked or suspended 50

Except in Québec, if the MFDA revokes or @ends a registered firm's
membership, the firm’s registration in the category of ual fund dealer is suspended
until reinstated or revoked under securities Iegislatiorr.b

N

M.O 2009-04, s. 10.3. Q

10.4. Activities not permitted while a fiN; registration is suspended

If a registered firm’'s registratioﬁ ind category is suspended, the firm must not act
as a dealer, an underwriter, an IS®r, or an investment fund manager, as the case
may be, under that category.

M.O 2009-04, s. 10.4. @

DIVISION 2 RevokaQrm’s registration

10.5. Revocatjon®f a suspended registration — firm

If a@stration has been suspended under this Part and it has not been

reinstat registration is revoked on the 2" anniversary of the suspension.
M.Eﬁ‘sgg-m, s. 10.5.

@. Exception for firms involved in a hearing or proceeding

Despite section 10.5, if a hearing or proceeding concerning a suspended
registrant is commenced under securities legislation or under the rules of an SRO, the
registrant’s registration remains suspended.
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M.O 2009-04, s. 10.6; M.O. 2011-03, s. 34.
10.7. Application of Part 10 in Ontario

Other than section 10.4, this Part does not apply in Ontario.

M.O 2009-04, s. 10.7. ,\‘b
PART 11  INTERNAL CONTROLS AND SYSTEMS Q/Q
DIVISION 1 Compliance ,\b“'

11.1. Compliance system ~\

A registered firm must establish, maintain and apply pollgéand procedures that
establish a system of controls and supervision sufficient to

(@) provide reasonable assurance that the fir&nd each individual acting on
its behalf complies with securities legislation, and (b

(b) manage the risks associated wit usiness in accordance with prudent
business practices.

4

M.O 2009-04, s. 11.1. (b

11.2. Designating an ultimate d@ated person

(1) A registered firm must gnate an individual who is registered under securities
legislation in the catego@t ultimate designated person to perform the functions
described in section 5.

2 A registereQ%‘must designate an individual under subsection (1) who is one of
the foIIowing:

chief executive officer of the registered firm or, if the firm does not

(a)
have a % executive officer, an individual acting in a capacity similar to a chief
exec icer,;

A é (b)  the sole proprietor of the registered firm;
(c) the officer in charge of a division of the registered firm, if the activity that

requires the firm to register occurs only within the division and the firm has significant
other business activities.
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(3) If an individual who is registered as a registered firm’s ultimate designated
person ceases to meet any of the conditions listed in subsection (2), the registered firm
must designate another individual to act as its ultimate designated person.

M.O 2009-04, s. 11.2; M.O. 2011-03, s. 36.
11.3. Designating a chief compliance officer '\(b
(1) A registered firm must designate an individual who is registered under @ties
legislation in the category of chief compliance officer to perform the functiops described
in section 5.2. '\&"
(2) A registered firm must not designate an individual to act Athe firm’s chief
compliance officer unless the individual has satisfied the applica nditions in Part 3
and the individual is one of the following: 5

(@) an officer or partner of the registered firm; O

(b)  the sole proprietor of the registered firrr(b

(3) If an individual who is registered as a tered firm’s chief compliance officer
ceases to meet any of the conditions listed i bsection (2), the registered firm must
designate another individual to act as its ciﬁefpompliance officer.

M.O 2009-04, s. 11.3. _\(b

11.4. Providing access to the rd of directors

A registered firm permit its ultimate designated person and its chief
compliance officer to dir, access the firm’s board of directors, or individuals acting in

a similar capacity fo iIrm, at such times as the ultimate designated person or the
chief compliance r may consider necessary or advisable in view of his or her

responsibilities.
M.O 20009, I, g 11.4; M.O. 2011-03, s. 37.

DIV@@ Books and records

. General requirements for records
}) A registered firm must maintain records to

(@) accurately record its business activities, financial affairs, and client
transactions, and
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(b) demonstrate the extent of the firm's compliance with applicable
requirements of securities legislation.

(2)  The records required under subsection (1) include, but are not limited to, records
that do the following:

@) permit timely creation and audit of financial statements and other fina &9
information required to be filed or delivered to the regulator or, in Québec, the segxies

regulatory authority; (l/

(b) permit determination of the registered firm’s capital position"\b"‘

(c) demonstrate compliance with the registered firm’s cap#gl and insurance

requirements; 0\/

(d)  demonstrate compliance with internal control Eroc ures;
(e) demonstrate compliance with the firm’s poff§esS and procedures;

) permit the identification and segr A{;R of client cash, securities, and
other property; 6

(9) identify all transactions conﬂgt‘ed on behalf of the registered firm and
each of its clients, including the parties transaction and the terms of the purchase

or sale; _\
(h) provide an audit tr VF
0] cIient@uctions and orders, and

(i) ade transmitted or executed for a client or by the registered
firm on its own beQ?~

%rit the generation of account activity reports for clients;

rowde securities pricing as may be required by securities legislation;
gég; document the opening of client accounts, including any agreements with

demonstrate compliance with sections 13.2 and 13.3;
(m) demonstrate compliance with complaint-handling requirements;

(n)  document correspondence with clients;
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(o)  document compliance and supervision actions taken by the firm.

M.O 2009-04, s. 11.5; M.O. 2011-03, s. 38.

11.6. Form, accessibility and retention of records

>

(1) A registered firm must keep a record that it is required to keep under se@it S

legislation (]/

(@) for 7 years from the date the record is created, '\b‘ s
(b) in a safe location and in a durable form, and ~\
(c) in a manner that permits it to be provided to th lator or, in Québec,

the securities regulatory authority in a reasonable period of tim
(2) A record required to be provided to the regulaﬁ\or, in Québec, the securities

regulatory authority must be provided in a format th@kis capable of being read by the
regulator or, in Québec, the securities regulatory aLhQ ty.

3) Paragraph (1)(c) does not apply in Ont%

)
M.O 2009-04, s. 11.6; M.O. 2011-03, s. '\

DIVISION 3 Certain business trﬁéctions

11.7. Tied settling of secuyi ransactions

A registered firm not require a person to settle that person's transaction with
the registered firm t that person's account at a Canadian financial institution as a
condition, or on t that would appear to a reasonable person to be a condition, of
supplying a p@ or service, unless this method of settlement would be, to a

necessary to provide the specific product or service that the person

reasonable
has reque z)

L/
|v|.o 04, s. 11.7.
@. Tied selling

A dealer, adviser or investment fund manager must not require another person
(@)  to buy, sell or hold a security as a condition, or on terms that would appear

to a reasonable person to be a condition, of supplying or continuing to supply a product
or service, or
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(b)  to buy, sell or use a product or service as a condition, or on terms that
would appear to a reasonable person to be a condition, of buying or selling a security.

M.O 2009-04, s. 11.8.

11.9. Registrant acquiring a registered firm’s securities or assets ,\(b

(1) A registrant must give the regulator or, in Québec, the securities re}&tory

authority written notice in accordance with subsection (2) if it proposes to agq‘uir any of
.

the following: '\

@) beneficial ownership of, or direct or indirect control or-\direction over, a
security of a registered firm; \/

(b) beneficial ownership of, or direct or indirect co%ol or direction over, a
security of a person of which a registered firm is a subsidj

(c) all or a substantial part of the assets of%egistered firm.
(2)  The notice required under subsection ( @st be delivered to the regulator or, in
Québec, the securities regulatory authority least 30 days before the proposed

acquisition and must include all relevantNag{s regarding the acquisition sufficient to
enable the regulator or the securities regBa ory authority to determine if the acquisition

is _\
@) likely to give rise @flict of interest,

(b) likely to hind registered firm in complying with securities legislation,
(c) inconsi Q/ith an adequate level of investor protection, or
(d) ot egse prejudicial to the public interest.

(3) Su {c.;bn (1) does not apply to the following:

a proposed acquisition if the beneficial ownership of, or direct or indirect
con@ or direction over, the person whose security is to be acquired will not change;

\ (b) a registrant who, alone or in combination with any other person, proposes
to acquire securities that, together with the securities already beneficially owned, or over
which direct or indirect control or direction is already exercised, do not exceed more
than 10% of any class or series of securities.
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4) Except in Ontario and British Columbia, if, within 30 days of the regulator’s or, in
Québec, the securities regulatory authority’s receipt of a notice under subsection (1),
the regulator or the securities regulatory authority notifies the registrant making the
acquisition that the regulator or the securities regulatory authority objects to the
acquisition, the acquisition must not occur until the regulator or the securities regulatory
authority approves it. (b

5) In Ontario, if, within 30 days of the regulator's receipt of a notice r
subsection (1)(a) or (c), the regulator notifies the registrant making the acquutl'g6 that
the regulator objects to the acquisition, the acquisition must not occur until s‘ ulator

approves it. N

(6) Following receipt of a notice of objection under subsection (47-&1 (5), the person
who submitted the notice to the regulator or, in Québec, th ‘ggzurities regulatory
authority may request an opportunity to be heardon the matter@ Québec, to present
observations and, if applicable, to produce documents to complle its record.

M. 2009-04, 5. 11.9; M.O. 2011-03, a. 41. A

11.10. Registered firm whose securities aftgzquired

(1) A registered firm must give the regulat(ﬂm, in Québec, the securities regulatory
authority written notice in accordance witi\supsection (2) if it knows or has reason to
believe that any person, alone or in cﬁ§ ation with any other person, is about to

acquire, or has acquired, beneficial o%n hip of, or direct or indirect control or direction
over, 10% or more of any class or of voting securities of any of the following:

(@) the registered fm@
(b) a person @1 the registered firm is a subsidiary.

(2)  The notice QQ’%ed under subsection (1) must,

(@) Iivered to the regulator or, in Québec, the securities regulatory

authority 22 n as possible,

Q include the name of each person involved in the acquisition, and
A P (c) after the registered firm has applied reasonable efforts to gather all
evant facts, include facts regarding the acquisition sufficient to enable the regulator
or, in Québec, the securities regulatory authority to determine if the acquisition is

0] likely to give rise to a conflict of interest,
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(i) likely to hinder the registered firm in complying with securities
legislation,

(i) inconsistent with an adequate level of investor protection, or
(iv)  otherwise prejudicial to the public interest.

3) This section does not apply to an acquisition in which the beneficial owner%’o\)f,
or direct or indirect control or direction over, a registered firm does not change.(]/

(4) This section does not apply if notice of the acquisition was @déd under

section 11.9. 4

(5) Except in British Columbia and Ontario, if, within 30 days regulator’s or, in
Québec, the securities regulatory authority’s receipt of a noti der subsection (1),
the regulator or the securities regulatory authority notifies%e person making the
acquisition that the regulator or the securities regulgt authority objects to the
acquisition, the acquisition must not occur until the reg¥I®or or the securities regulatory
authority approves it. (b

(6) In Ontario, if, within 30 days of the @ulator’s receipt of a notice under
subsection (1)(a), the regulator notifies the son making the acquisition that the
regulator objects to the acquisition, the Nulsition must not occur until the regulator
approves it.

(7) Following receipt of a notic bjection under subsection (5) or (6), the person
proposing to make the acquisitiof\¥ay request an opportunity to be heard on the matter
or, in Québec, to present gb ations and, if applicable, to produce documents to
complete its record. é

M.O 2009-04, s. 11.@@). 2011-03, s. 41.

PART 12 FINANCIAL CONDITION
DIVISION é@)orking capital
12.1Q®)|tal requirements

% If, at any time, the excess working capital of a registered firm, as calculated in
ordance with Form 31-103F1 Calculation of Excess Working Capital, is less than
zero, the registered firm must notify the regulator or, in Québec, the securities
regulatory authority as soon as possible.
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(2) The excess working capital of a registered firm, as calculated in accordance with
Form 31-103F1 Calculation of Excess Working Capital, must not be less than zero for 2
consecutive days.

3) For the purpose of completing Form 31-103F1 Calculation of Excess Working
Capital, the minimum capital is

(@) $25,000, for a registered adviser that is not also a registered dea%’o\a
registered investment fund manager, (]/

(b)  $50,000, for a registered dealer that is not also a registe;e\(b‘rﬁ/estment
fund manager, and 4

(© $100,000, for a registered investment fund manager \/

(4) Paragraph (3)(c) does not apply to a registered investmbn fund manager that is
exempt from the dealer registration requirement unde, @tion 8.6 in respect of all

investment funds for which it acts as adviser. &
(5) This section does not apply to a registered fi at is a member of IROC and is
registered as an investment fund manager if al e following apply:

(@ the firm has a minimum capi%qf not less than $100,000 as calculated in
accordance with IIROC Form 1 Joint Re ry Financial Questionnaire and Report;

(b)  the firm notifies th ~egulator or, in Québec, the securities regulatory
authority as soon as possible 'evat any time, the firm’s risk adjusted capital, as
calculated in accordance wi h&c Form 1 Joint Regulatory Financial Questionnaire
and Report is less than ze@

(c) the ris sted capital of the firm, as calculated in accordance with
IIROC Form 1 Jo% egulatory Financial Questionnaire and Report, is not less than
zero for 2 consegcutve days.

MFDA if Iso registered as an exempt market dealer, a scholarship plan dealer or

(6) Thiq (e'jion does not apply to a mutual fund dealer that is a member of the
an |z@| nt fund manager and if all of the following apply:

(@ the firm has a minimum capital, as calculated in accordance with MFDA
rm 1 MFDA Financial Questionnaire and Report, of not less than

0] $50,000, if the firm is registered as an exempt market dealer or
scholarship plan dealer,

(i) $100,000, if the firm is registered as an investment fund manager;
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(b)  the firm notifies the regulator or, in Québec, the securities regulatory
authority as soon as possible if, at any time, the firm’s risk adjusted capital, as
calculated in accordance with MFDA Form 1 MFDA Financial Questionnaire and Report
is less than zero;

(c) the risk adjusted capital of the firm, as calculated in accordance gi
MFDA Form 1 MFDA Financial Questionnaire and Report, is not less than zerg~NoM 2

consecutive days. (]/

M.O 2009-04, s. 12.1; M.O. 2011-03, s. 42. '\b"‘

12.2. Notifying the regulator or the securities regulatory authorﬁ)\of a
subordination agreement

is to exclude an amount from its long-term related (@s, debt as calculated on

Form 31-103F1 Calculation of Excess Working Capital, iIrm must notify the regulator
or, in Québec, the securities regulatory authority 10 d%s before it

@) repays the loan or any part of the(@, or

(b)  terminates the agreement. N

If a registered firm has executed a subordination ai reerent, the effect of which

M.O 2009-04, s. 12.2; M.O. 2011-03",_{51?

DIVISION 2 Insurance v

12.3. Insurance — deale@

(1) Arregistered dQ_ ust maintain bonding or insurance
@) terc tains the clauses set out in Appendix A, and

(b) tht provides for a double aggregate limit or a full reinstatement of
coverages

(2) registered dealer must maintain bonding or insurance in respect of each clause
out in Appendix A in the highest of the following amounts for each clause:

(@  $50,000 per employee, agent and dealing representative or $200,000,
whichever is less;
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(b) 1% of the total client assets that the dealer holds or has access to, as
calculated using the dealer's most recent financial records, or $25,000,000, whichever
is less;

(c) 1% of the dealer's total assets, as calculated using the dealer's most
recent financial records, or $25,000,000, whichever is less; (b

(d) the amount determined to be appropriate by a resolution of the (@1 'S

board of directors, or individuals acting in a similar capacity for the firm. (]/

(3) In Québ_ec, this section dqes not apply to a scholarship plan dea}e\rbsr"a mutual
fund dealer registered only in Québec. 4

M.O 2009-04, s. 12.3; M.O. 2011-03, s. 44. 0\/

12.4. Insurance — adviser 5

(1) Avregistered adviser must maintain bonding or inQ&ance
(@) that contains the clauses set out in Apﬁg?dix A, and

(b) that provides for a double agﬁ%gate limit or a full reinstatement of
coverage. N

(2) A regqistered adviser that doe r%?hold or have access to client assets must
maintain bonding or insurance in ggspect of each clause set out in Appendix A in the
amount of $50,000 for each clau §

t holds or has access to client assets must maintain
ect of each clause set out in Appendix A in the highest of

(3) A registered advis
bonding or insurance i
the following amoun

(a) 1% c%ssets under management that the adviser holds or has access to,
as calculate mg the adviser's most recent financial records, or $25,000,000,
whichever i\eds;

1% of the adviser’s total assets, as calculated using the adviser’s most
In

rec ancial records, or $25,000,000, whichever is less;

N\ (9 $200,000;

(d) the amount determined to be appropriate by a resolution of the adviser’s
board of directors or individuals acting in a similar capacity for the firm.

M.O 2009-04, s. 12.4; M.O. 2011-03, s. 45.
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12.5. Insurance —investment fund manager
(1) Arregistered investment fund manager must maintain bonding or insurance

(@) that contains the clauses set out in Appendix A, and

>

(b) that provides for a double aggregate limit or a full reinstatenﬂ't\of

coverage. (]/

(2) A registered investment fund manager must maintain bonding r%ﬂrance in
respect of each clause set out in Appendix A in the highest of the foll wi(% amounts for
each clause: l

@) 1% of assets under management, as calculated ;@the investment fund
manager’s most recent financial records, or $25,000,000, whichgwer is less;

(b) 1% of the investment fund manager’'s tota&\ssets, as calculated using the
investment fund manager’s most recent financial re s, or $25,000,000, whichever is

less:; N
(c)  $200,000; Q/Q

)
(d) the amount determined to %tabpropriate by a resolution of the investment
fund manager’s board of directors or i&di uals acting in a similar capacity for the firm.

M.O 2009-04, s. 12.5; M.O. 20@. 46.

12.6. Global bonding or@wance

A registereggy not maintain bonding or insurance under this Division that

benefits, or name an insured, another person unless the bond provides, without
regard to the (@n experience or any other factor referable to that other person, the
following:

he registered firm has the right to claim directly against the insurer in
resp losses, and any payment or satisfaction of those losses must be made
dire&y 0 the registered firm;

\ (b)  the individual or aggregate limits under the policy may only be affected by
claims made by or on behalf of

0] the registered firm, or
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(i) a subsidiary of the registered firm whose financial results are
consolidated with those of the registered firm.

M.O 2009-04, s. 12.6.

12.7. Notifying the regulator or the securities regulatory authority of a change,
claim or cancellation '\(b

A registered firm must, as soon as possible, notify the regulator or, inﬁ?oec,
the securities regulatory authority in writing of any change in, claim ma%a‘ ur¥der, or

cancellation of any insurance policy required under this Division. '\ s

M.O 2009-04, s. 12.7. ~\

DIVISION 3 Audits 50\/

12.8. Direction by the regulator or the securities regyl y authority to conduct

an audit or review

A registered firm must direct its auditor in m{@ to conduct any audit or review
required by the regulator or, in Québec, the @rities regulatory authority during its
registration and must deliver a copy of the o@tion to the regulator or the securities
regulatory authority N

(@  with its application for Ews(tgtion, and

(b) no later than the 18Q ¥Yay after the registered firm changes its auditor.

M.O 2009-04, s. 12.8; M.C@Jl-o& S. 47.

12.9. Co-operating@@he auditor

or otherwise i cooperate with a reasonable request made by an auditor of the
he course of an audit.

registered i t
L/
M.0 2¢0904, s. 12.9.

@S ON 4 Financial reporting

A registrEnt ust not withhold, destroy or conceal any information or documents

12.10. Annual financial statements
(1) Annual financial statements delivered to the regulator, or in Québec, the

securities regulatory authority under this Division for financial years beginning on or
after January 1, 2011 must include the following:
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(@) a statement of comprehensive income, a statement of changes in equity
and a statement of cash flows, each prepared for the most recently completed financial
year and the financial year immediately preceding the most recently completed financial
year, if any;

(b) a statement of financial position, signed by at least one director o ﬁb
registered firm, as at the end of the most recently completed financial year e

financial year immediately preceding the most recently completed financial yea{,l/ Y;
(c) notes to the financial statements. '\b‘ s

(2)  The annual financial statements delivered to the regulatorﬁ&in Québec, the
securities regulatory authority under this Division must be auditedo\/

3) (paragraph revoked). 5

M.O 2009-04, s. 12.10; M.O. 2010-17, s. 7; M.O. 2011-0&918.
12.11. Interim financial information f\(b

(2) Interim financial information deliveregl)o the regulator, or in Québec, the
securities regulatory authority under this Dxi?"on for interim periods relating to financial
years beginning on or after January 1, 205 ay be limited to the following:

(a) a statement of com ~h&nsive income for the 3-month period ending on
the last day of the interim perio d for the same period of the immediately preceding
financial year, if any;

(b) a statem
registered firm, as a
period of the imm

financial position, signed by at least one director of the
d of the interim period and as at the end of the same interim
ly preceding financial year, if any.

(2) The i financial information delivered to the regulator or, in Québec, the
securities tory authority under this Division must be prepared using the same
accounti inciples that the registered firm uses to prepare its annual financial
state

@ 09-04, s. 12.11; M.O. 2010-17, s. 8; M.O. 2011-03, s. 48.
12.12. Delivering financial information — dealer
(1) A registered dealer must deliver the following to the regulator or, in Québec, the

securities regulatory authority no later than the 90th day after the end of its financial
year:
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(@) its annual financial statements for the financial year;

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of Excess Working Capital,
showing the calculation of the dealer's excess working capital as at the end of the
financial year and as at the end of the immediately preceding financial year, if any. (b

(2) A registered dealer must deliver the following to the regulator or, in Quf@ e

securities regulatory authority no later than the 30th day after the end of irst,
second and third interim period of its financial year: b‘
)

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of E§§/Working Capital,

€) its interim financial information for the interim period;

showing the calculation of the dealer's excess working capi at the end of the
interim period and as at the end of the immediately precediai rim period, if any.

(2.1) If a registered firm is a member of the MFDA@ IS registered as an exempt
market dealer or scholarship plan dealer, the firm(lbexempt from paragraphs (1)(b)
and (2)(b) if all of the following apply: f\

(@) the firm has a minimum capital ont less than $50,000 as calculated in
accordance with MFDA Form 1 MFDA Finwigl Questionnaire and Report;

(b)  the firm delivers to the eg?ator or, in Québec, the securities regulatory
authority a completed MFDA For DA Financial Questionnaire and Report no later
than the 90™ day after the em its financial year that shows the calculation of the

firm’s risk adjusted capital gs e end of the financial year and as at the end of the
immediately preceding finéﬁl year, if any;

authority a compl FDA Form 1 MFDA Financial Questionnaire and Report no later
than the 30" dgy aXer the end of the first, second and third quarter of its financial year
that shows t %ﬁulation of the firm’s risk adjusted capital as at the end of the quarter
and as at ejd of the immediately preceding month, if any.

(c) the ;&@ers to the regulator or, in Québec, the securities regulatory

3) @) ection (2) does not apply to an exempt market dealer unless it is also
regi§ggred in another category.

@2009-04, s.12.12; M.O. 2010-17, s. 9; M.O. 2011-03, s. 49.

12.13. Delivering financial information — adviser
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A registered adviser must deliver the followm%to the regulator or, in Québec, the
securities regulatory authority no later than the 90" day after the end of its financial
year:

(@) its annual financial statements for the financial year;

showing the calculation of the adviser's excess working capital as at the end e

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of Excess Working Cari@D
financial year and as at the end of the immediately preceding financial year, if aﬁb

M.O 2009-04, s. 12.13. ,\b“'
12.14. Delivering financial information — investment fund manager-\

(1) A registered investment fund manager must deliver the.gb/ving to the regulator
or, in Québec, the securities regulatory authority no later than tQe 90" day after the end
of its financial year:

(@) its annual financial statements for the finglcial year;

(b) a completed Form 31-103F1 lation of Excess Working Capital,
showing the calculation of the investment fun nager’s excess working capital as at
the end of the financial year and as at thp\eqd of the immediately preceding financial

year, if any; (b
(© a description of wkasset value adjustment made in respect of an

investment fund managed by th estment fund manager during the financial year.

(2) A registered invest@ fund manager must deliver the following to the regulator
or, in Québec, the secu regulatory authority no later than the 30" day after the end
of the first, second a Q_ interim period of its financial year:

@) it |m financial information for the interim period;

(b) Ca)completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of Excess Working Capital,

showin alculation of the investment fund manager’s excess working capital as at
the&@( the interim period and as at the end of the immediately preceding interim
peri§d, It any;

(© a description of any net asset value adjustment made in respect of an
investment fund managed by the investment fund manager during the interim period.

(3) A description of a net asset value adjustment referred to in this section must
include the following:
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(@) the name of the fund;

(b) assets under administration of the fund;

(c) the cause of the adjustment;

(d)  the dollar amount of the adjustment; '\(b

(e) the effect of the adjustment on net asset value per unit or shard@?amy
corrections made to purchase and sale transactions affecting either the investmént fund
or security holders of the investment fund. '\& o

4) If a registered firm is a member of IROC and is registered aSﬁkinvestment fund
manager, the firm is exempt from paragraphs (1)(b) and (2)(b) if \/

(@) the firm has a minimum capital of not less than $bo,ooo, as calculated in
accordance with IIROC Form 1 Joint Regulatory Financl{@stionnaire and Report;

(b)  the firm delivers to the regulator or, irrﬁuébec, the securities regulatory
authority a completed IIROC Form 1 Joint Re nQ ry Financial Questionnaire and
Report, no later than the 90" day after the f its financial year, that shows the
calculation of the firm’s risk adjusted capital a the end of the financial year and as at
the end of the immediately preceding finanp@l.year, if any, and

(c) the firm delivers to the eg?ator or, in Québec, the securities regulatory
authority a completed 1IROC Fo Joint Regulatory Financial Questionnaire and
Report, no later than the 30™ after the end of the first, second and third interim
period of its financial year, tha\sows the calculation of the firm’s risk adjusted capital
as at the end of the inte@period and as at the end of the immediately preceding

month, if any. O

(5) If a register, Qm is @ member of the MFDA and is registered as an investment
fund manager, fhe ™¥m is exempt from paragraphs (1)(b) and (2)(b) if

(@) be firm has a minimum capital of not less than $100,000, as calculated in

accorda ith MFDA Form 1 MFDA Financial Questionnaire and Report;
g the firm delivers to the regulator or, in Québec, the securities regulatory
ofity a completed MFDA Form 1 MFDA Financial Questionnaire and Report, no

r than the 90" day after the end of its financial year, that shows the calculation of the
firm’s risk adjusted capital as at the end of the financial year and as at the end of the
immediately preceding financial year, if any, and

(© the firm delivers to the regulator or, in Québec, the securities regulatory
authority a completed MFDA Form 1 MFDA Financial Questionnaire and Report, no
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later than the 30" day after the end of the first, second and third interim period of its
financial year, that shows the calculation of the firm’s risk adjusted capital as at the end
of the interim period and as at the end of the immediately preceding month, if any.

M.O 2009-04, s. 12.14; M.O. 2010-17, s. 10; M.O. 2011-03, s. 50.
12.15. Exemptions for financial years beginning in 2011 '\(b

(1) Despite subsections 12.10(1), 12.11(1), 12.12(1) and (2), 12.13 andqﬁgﬂl)
and (2), the annual financial statements, the interim financial informati d the
completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of Excess Working Capital, for N Ncial year
beginning in 2011 or for interim periods relating to a financial year ing in 2011
may exclude comparative information for the preceding financial periei

(2) Despite subsection 12.12(2), the first interim financial @\ngtion, and the first
completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of Excess Working Qapital, required to be
delivered in respect of an interim period beginning on or .i@ January 1, 2011 must be
delivered no later than the 45" day after the end of the ifsgrim period.

3) Despite subsection 12.14(2), the first intéq(':? financial information, the first
completed Form 31-103F1 Calculation of Exc orking Capital, and the description
of any net asset value adjustment, required “t¢/be delivered in respect of an interim
period beginning on or after January 1, 2&{1.,must be delivered no later than the 45
day after the end of the interim period. (b

M.O 2010-17, s. 11. ?:\
PART 13 DEALING WIT, &NTS — INDIVIDUALS AND FIRMS
DIVISION 1 Know yo nt and suitability

13.1. Investmean% managers exempt from this Division

This DAN does not apply to an investment fund manager in respect of its
activities ' nJnvestment fund manager.
MOégL s. 13.1; M.O. 2011-03, s. 51.

Know your client

For the purpose of paragraph 2(b) in Ontario, Nova Scotia and New Brunswick,
“|nS|der” has the meaning ascribed to that term in the Securities Act except that
“reporting issuer”, as it appears in the definition of “insider”, is to be read as “reporting
issuer or any other issuer whose securities are publicly traded”.
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(2)  Aregistrant must take reasonable steps to

(@) establish the identity of a client and, if the registrant has cause for
concern, make reasonable inquiries as to the reputation of the client,

(b) establish whether the client is an insider of a reporting issuer or any other
issuer whose securities are publicly traded, '\

(c) ensure that it has sufficient information regarding all of the foIVﬁl@g to
enable it to meet its obligations under section 13.3 or, if applicable, tge‘ stability
)

requirement imposed by an SRO: '\
0] the client’s investment needs and objectives; ~\
(i) the client’s financial circumstances; 50
(i) the client’s risk tolerance, and O

(d)  establish the creditworthiness of the cli%if the registered firm is financing
the client’s acquisition of a security. f\

3) For the purpose of establishing the iﬁantity of a client that is a corporation,
partnership or trust, the registrant must estpgli§h the following:

(@  the nature of the client’iﬁu(;%ess;
(b)  the identity of any i idual who,
0] in the of a corporation, is a beneficial owner of, or exercises
direct or indirect control srection over, more than 25% of the voting rights attached to
the outstanding votin@ rities of the corporation, or

(ii Qn the case of a partnership or trust, exercises control over the
affairs of the rship or trust.

4) A@‘strant must take reasonable steps to keep the information required under

this s current.

This section does not apply if the client is a registered firm, a Canadian financial
Qstitution or a Schedule Il bank.

(6) Paragraph (2)(c) does not apply to a registrant in respect of a permitted client if

(@) the permitted client has waived, in writing, the requirements under
subsections 13.3(1) and (2), and
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(b)  the registrant does not act as an adviser in respect of a managed account
of the permitted client.

(7 Paragraph (2)(b) does not apply to a registrant in respect of a client for which the
registrant only trades securities referred to in paragraphs 7.1(2)(b) and (2)(c). (b
M.O 2009-04, s. 13.2; M.O. 2011-03, s. 52. '\

>
13.3. Suitability

4

(1) A registrant must take reasonable steps to ensure that, b fo'ré it makes a
recommendation to or accepts an instruction from a client to buy ell a security, or
makes a purchase or sale of a security for a client's managed ac bqpt the purchase or
sale is suitable for the client. 50

(2) If a client instructs a registrant to buy, sell o d a security and in the
registrant’s reasonable opinion following the instructi ould not be suitable for the
client, the registrant must inform the client of the regﬁrant's opinion and must not buy
or sell the security unless the client instructs the 6' trant to proceed nonetheless.

3) This section does not apply if the cIientﬂ,a registered firm, a Canadian financial
institution or a Schedule Il bank. N

(4)  This section does not apply to‘trgastrant in respect of a permitted client if

(@ the permitted clie Ras waived, in writing, the requirements under this
section, and

(b) the registr®§o:es not act as an adviser in respect of a managed account
of the permitted clie

<
M.O 2009-04, s,13%.

DIVISION Cgmflicts of interest
13.4. ifying and responding to conflicts of interest
A registered firm must take reasonable steps to identify existing material conflicts
interest, and material conflicts of interest that the registered firm in its reasonable
opinion would expect to arise, between the firm, including each individual acting on the
firm's behalf, and a client.

(2) A registered firm must respond to an existing or potential conflict of interest
identified under subsection (1).

69



REGULATION IN FORCE FROM MAY 31, 2013 TO JULY 14, 2013

(3) If a reasonable investor would expect to be informed of a conflict of interest
identified under subsection (1), the registered firm must disclose, in a timely manner,
the nature and extent of the conflict of interest to the client whose interest conflicts with
the interest identified.

(4)  This section does not apply to an investment fund manager in respect q@
investment fund that is subject to Regulation 81-107 respecting Independent Vi
Committee for Investment Funds (chapter V-1.1, r. 43).

M.O 2009-04, s. 13.4. '\b‘ 5
13.5. Restrictions on certain managed account transactions ~\
(2) In this section, “responsible person” means, for a registegbdviser,

(@) the adviser,

(b)  a partner, director or officer of the adviqa.')and

(c) each of the following who has ac @ to, or participates in formulating, an
investment decision made on behalf of a cIien{bthe adviser or advice to be given to a
client of the adviser:

0] an employee or ~a{e(n?()of the adviser;

(i)  an affiliate oN(¥¢ adviser;

@iy a par@dlrector officer, employee or agent of an affiliate of the
adviser.

2 A registereQ‘g ser must not knowingly cause an investment portfolio managed
by it, including vestment fund for which it acts as an adviser, to do any of the

following: O

ak~purchase a security of an issuer in which a responsible person or an
asszio a responsible person is a partner, officer or director unless

A é 0] this fact is disclosed to the client, and

(i) the written consent of the client to the purchase is obtained before
the purchase;

(b) purchase or sell a security from or to the investment portfolio of any of the
following:
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0] a responsible person;
(i) an associate of a responsible person;

(i)  an investment fund for which a responsible person acts as Pg

adviser; '\
of a

(c) provide a guarantee or loan to a responsible person or an assofl 9
responsible person. b‘
)

M.O 2009-04, s. 13.5.
13.6. Disclosure when recommending related or connected ities

A registered firm must not make a recommendatb1 in any medium of
communication to buy, sell or hold a security issued by t istered firm, a security of
a related issuer or, during the security’s distribution, a urity of a connected issuer of
the registered firm, unless any of the following apply:(b

(@ the firm discloses, in the same @n of communication, the nature and
extent of the relationship or connection betwegrijhe firm and the issuer;

)

(b) the recommendation is ifM«eSpect of a security of a mutual fund, a
scholarship plan, an educational plan!or n educational trust that is an affiliate of, or is
managed by an affiliate of, thegg d firm and the names of the registered firm and

the fund, plan or trust, as the c may be, are sufficiently similar to indicate that they
are affiliated.

M.O 2009-04, s. 13.6; %11-03, s. 53.
DIVISION 3 Ref %rangements
13.7. Defin&r— referral arrangements
I ivision
Q“c lent” includes a prospective client;

\s “referral arrangement” means any arrangement in which a registrant agrees to
pay or receive a referral fee;

“referral fee” means any form of compensation, direct or indirect, paid for the
referral of a client to or from a registrant.
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M.O 2009-04, s. 13.7.
13.8. Permitted referral arrangements

A registered firm, or a registered individual whose registration is sponsored by
the registered firm, must not participate in a referral arrangement with another pers‘cg

unless,
N

@) before a client is referred by or to the registrant, the terms of the'ﬁrral
arrangement are set out in a written agreement between the registered firm #nd the

person;
N

(b)  the registered firm records all referral fees, and ~\

(c) the registrant ensures that the infor prescribed by
subsection 13.10(1) is provided to the client in writing befo rShe party receiving the
referral either opens an account for the client or provides ces to the client.

M.O 2009-04, s. 13.8; M.O. 2011-03, s. 54. (b
13.9. Verifying the qualifications of the per eceiving the referral

A registered firm, or a registered w% ddual whose registration is sponsored by
the registered firm, must not refer a cheﬂ? another person unless the firm first takes

reasonable steps to satisfy itself th person has the appropriate qualifications to
provide the services, and if applic registered to provide those services.

M.O 2009-04, s. 13.9; MO§ 3, s. 54.

13.10. Disclosing refer, rangements to clients

Q) The written{@?sure of the referral arrangement required by subsection 13.8(c)
must include thg folewing:

be name of each party to the agreement referred to in paragraph 13.8(a);

the purpose and material terms of the agreement, including the nature of
the ches to be provided by each party;

(c) any conflicts of interest resulting from the relationship between the parties
to the agreement and from any other element of the agreement;

(d)  the method of calculating the referral fee and, to the extent possible, the
amount of the fee;
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(e) the category of registration of each registrant that is a party to the
agreement with a description of the activities that the registrant is authorized to engage
in under that category and, giving consideration to the nature of the referral, the
activities that the registrant is not permitted to engage in;

() if a referral is made to a registrant, a statement that all activity requiri
registration resulting from the referral arrangement will be provided by the regis;ég
receiving the referral;

(9) any other information that a reasonable client would consider, im[gﬁant in
evaluating the referral arrangement. '\ s

(2) If there is a change to the information set out in subsectiom&), the registrant
must ensure that written disclosure of that change is provided to client affected by
the change as soon as possible and no later than the 30th day@(e the date on which
a referral fee is next paid or received. O

13.11. Referral arrangements before Septemberlsg,éow

M.O 2009-04, s. 13.10; M.O. 2011-03, s. 55.

(1) This Division applies to a refer@ arrangement entered into before
September 28, 2009 if a referral fee isy{{ﬂd under the referral arrangement after
September 28, 2009. (b

(2)  Subsection (1) does not apgly umtil 6 months after September 28, 2009.

M.O 2009-04, s. 13.11. @
DIVISION 4 Loans an@grgin

13.12. Restrictior@e‘nding to clients

@ A regicz)%rmust not lend money, extend credit or provide margin to a client.

(2) N(@‘!hstanding subsection (1), an investment fund manager may lend money on
a sh basis to an investment fund it manages, if the loan is for the purpose of
fun(%g redemptions of its securities or meeting expenses incurred by the investment
@ in the normal course of its business.
\

M.O 2009-04, s. 13.12; M.O. 2011-03, s. 56.

13.13. Disclosure when recommending the use of borrowed money
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(2) If a registrant recommends that a client should use borrowed money to finance
any part of a purchase of a security, the registrant must, before the purchase, provide
the client with a written statement that is substantially similar to the following:

“Using borrowed money to finance the purchase of securities involves greater
risk than a purchase using cash resources only. If you borrow money to purchage
securities, your responsibility to repay the loan and pay interest as required by its t{%
remains the same even if the value of the securities purchased declines.”.

(2)  Subsection (1) does not apply if one of the following applies Q/
)

(@) the registrant has provided the client with the statemen dgcribed under
subsection (1) no earlier than the 180th day before the date of the proéqsed purchase,

(b) (paragraph revoked). 50
(c) the client is a permitted client. O
M.O 2009-04, s. 13.13; M.O. 2011-03, s. 57. (b&
DIVISION 5 Complaints Q'\
13.14. Application of this Divisiony\ N

(1)  This Division does not appl o(g investment fund manager in respect of its
activities as an investment fund mvg r.

(2) In Québec, a register is deemed to comply with this Division if it complies
with sections 168.1.1 to 1@3 of the Securities Act (R.S.Q., chapter V-1.1) (Québec).

M.O 2009-04, s. 13.@@. 2011-03, s. 58.
13.15. H N1g complaints
Ar tdred firm must document and, in a manner that a reasonable investor

would ¢ r fair and effective, respond to each complaint made to the registered firm
@ roduct or service offered by the firm or a representative of the firm.

abo%O
@ 09-04, s. 13.15.
13.16. Dispute resolution service

(1) A registered firm must ensure that independent dispute resolution or mediation
services are made available, at the firm’s expense, to a client to resolve a complaint
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made by the client about any trading or advising activity of the firm or one of its
representatives.

(2) If a person makes a complaint to a registered firm about any trading or advising
activity of the firm or one of its representatives, the registered firm must as soon as
possible inform the person of how to contact and use the dispute resolution or mediati

services which are provided to the firm’s clients. '\‘cg

M.O 2009-04, s. 13.16. (]9
PART 14 HANDLING CLIENT ACCOUNTS - FIRMS '\b"‘
DIVISION 1 Exemption for investment fund managers ~\

14.1. Investment fund managers exempt from Part 14 50

Other than sections 14.6, 14.12(5) and 14.14, thi§ Part does not apply to an
investment fund manager in respect of its activities as afiNgvestment fund manager.

M.O 2009-04, s. 14.1; M.O. 2011-03, s. 59. Qr\(b
DIVISION 2 Disclosure to clients (l/

)
14.2. Relationship disclosure informmj')}

would consider important about client's relationship with the registrant.

(1)  Aregistered firm must 03/&7}*61 client all information that a reasonable investor

(2)  The information ret@d to be delivered under subsection (1) includes all of the

following: O

(@) a deQ ion of the nature or type of the client’'s account;

(b) %gcussion that identifies the products or services the registered firm
offers to a X

a description of the types of risks that a client should consider when
mal@ an investment decision;

(d) a description of the risks to a client of using borrowed money to finance a
purchase of a security;

(e) a description of the conflicts of interest that the registered firm is required
to disclose to a client under securities legislation;
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)] disclosure of all costs to a client for the operation of an account;

(g)  a description of the costs a client will pay in making, holding and selling
investments;

(h)  a description of the compensation paid to the registered firm in relation o
the different types of products that a client may purchase through the registered firn}'\

0] a description of the content and frequency of reporting for each a&i}gﬂ or

portfolio of a client;
)

0) if section 13.16 applies to the registered firm, disclosure th{a\independent
dispute resolution or mediation services are available at the regist firm’s expense,
to resolve any dispute that might arise between the client and the about any trading
or advising activity of the firm or one of its representatives; 5

(k) a statement that the registered firm has an ation to assess whether a
purchase or sale of a security is suitable for a client prigNo executing the transaction or
at any other time; (b

)] the information a registered fir ust collect about the client under
section 13.2.

)
3) A registered firm must deliver to %'knt the information in subsection (1) before

the firm first _\

@) purchases or sells curity for the client, or
(b)  advises the @to purchase, sell or hold a security.

subsection (1), th jstered firm must take reasonable steps to notify the client of the
change in a timgl nner and, if possible, before the firm next

4) If there is %@am change to the information delivered to a client under

@) @rchases or sells a security for the client, or

advises the client to purchase, sell or hold a security.

This section does not apply if the client is a registered firm, a Canadian financial
Qstitution or a Schedule Il bank.

(6) This section does not apply to a registrant in respect of a permitted client if

(@) the permitted client has waived, in writing, the requirements under this
section, and
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(b)  the registrant does not act as an adviser in respect of a managed account
of the permitted client.

M.O 2009-04, s. 14.2; M.O. 2011-03, s. 60.

14.3. Disclosure to clients about the fair allocation of investment opportunitiq{b
A registered adviser must deliver to a client a summary of the policiesﬂ@ired

under section 11.1 that provide reasonable assurance that the firm and egch in¥ividual

acting on its behalf complies with section 14.10 and that summary must ivered

(@ when the adviser opens an account for the client, and ~\

(b) if there is a significant change to the summary Ia@llvered to the client,
in a timely manner and, if possible, before the firm next

(1) purchases or sells a security for the'ﬁient, or

(i) advises the client to purchase,hg)or hold a security.

M.O 2009-04, s. 14.3. 2)
14.4. When the firm has a relatlonsh@jvl h a financial institution

(2) If a registered firm opens I®nt account to trade in securities, in an office or
branch of a Canadian financialfg¥titution or a Schedule Il bank, the registered firm
must give the client a written Ice stating that it is a separate legal entity from the
Canadian financial instituti Schedule 11l bank and, unless otherwise advised by the
registrant, securities pu ed from or through the registrant

(@) are %qured by a government deposit insurer,

(b) @ot guaranteed by the Canadian financial institution or Schedule Il
bank, and

@ i may fluctuate in value.
% A registered firm that is subject to subsection (1) must receive a written
firmation from the client that the client has read and understood the notice before
the registered firm
@) purchases or sells a security for the client, or

(b)  advises the client to purchase, sell or hold a security.
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(3)  This section does not apply to a registered firm if the client is a permitted client.

M.O 2009-04, s. 14.4.

14.5. Notice to clients by non-resident registrants (b
(1) A registered firm whose head office is not located in the local jurisdictio st
provide a client in the local jurisdiction with a statement in writing disclzﬁ&jthe

following: b‘
)
N

(b) the jurisdiction in Canada or the foreign jurisdictig\ip which the head
office or the principal place of business of the firm is located,; 5

(@) the firm is not resident in the local jurisdiction;

(c) all or substantially all of the assets of the fi y be situated outside the
local jurisdiction;

(d) there may be difficulty enforcing le a\ hts against the firm because of
the above; &

(e) the name and address of the@qnt for service of process of the firm in the

local jurisdiction.

the firm is registered in the local iction.

(2) This section does not applys ~L‘registered firm whose head office is in Canada if

M.O 2009-04, s. 14.5; M.C@JLOB, S. 61.

DIVISION 3 Clientéé

14.6. Holding glient assets in trust
Ar Qtﬁred firm that holds client assets must hold the assets
separate and apart from its own property,
Q(b) in trust for the client, and

(c) in the case of cash, in a designated trust account at a Canadian financial
institution, a Schedule IIl bank, or a member of IROC.

M.O 2009-04, s. 14.6.
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14.7. Holding client assets — non-resident registrants

(1) A registered firm whose head office is not located in a jurisdiction of Canada
must ensure that all client assets are held

€) in the client’s name, (b
(b) on behalf of the client by a custodian or sub-custodian that Q'\
(1) meets the guidelines prescribed for acting as a sub-cusgtodia? of the

portfolio securities of a mutual fund in Part 6 of Regulation 81-102 res& % Mutual
Funds (chapter V-1.1, r. 39), and

(i) is subject to the Bank for International SettlgdRepts’ framework for

international convergence of capital measurement and capital rds, or
(c) on behalf of the client by a registered deal t is a member of an SRO
and that is a member of Canadian Investor Protectfgq und or other comparable

compensation fund or contingency trust fund. (b

(2)  Section 14.6 does not apply to a registe{,ﬁi@'m that is subject to subsection (1).

M.O 2009-04, s. 14.7. N
14.8. Securities subjectto a safe&;gl"ag agreement

A registered firm that hol Enencumbered securities for a client under a written
safekeeping agreement must

(a) segregate @ecurities from all other securities,
(b) ideane‘securities as being held in safekeeping for the client in
the registrant’s security position record,
Q~(ii) the client’s ledger, and
Q (i) the client’s statement of account, and

\ (© release the securities only on an instruction from the client.

M.O 2009-04, s. 14.8.

14.9. Securities not subject to a safekeeping agreement
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(1)  Avregistered firm that holds unencumbered securities for a client other than under
a written safekeeping agreement must

(@) segregate and identify the securities as being held in trust for the client,

and
(b)  describe the securities as being held in segregation on '\(b
0] the registrant’s security position record, (]/Q
(i)  the client’s ledger, and '\b‘ s
(i) the client’s statement of account. ~\

(2)  Securities described in subsection (1) may be segregate?’b)ulk.

M.O 2009-04, s. 14.9.
<O

DIVISION 4 Client accounts (b

14.10. Allocating investment opportunities f @

A registered adviser must ensure fp'{ness in allocating investment opportunities
among its clients. (b

M.O 2009-04, s. 14.10. ?:\

14.11. Selling or assigning,c accounts

If a registered fir poses to sell or assign a client’'s account in whole or in part
to another registran egistered firm must, prior to the sale or assignment, give a

written explanatioQ e proposal to the client and inform the client of the client’s right
to close the cliept’'swccount.
M.O 2009, gt, g 14.11.
DIV&@ Account activity reporting
2 Content and delivery of trade confirmation
\) A registered dealer that has acted on behalf of a client in connection with a
purchase or sale of a security must promptly deliver to the client or, if the client

consents in writing, to a registered adviser acting for the client, a written confirmation of
the transaction, setting out the following:

80



REGULATION IN FORCE FROM MAY 31, 2013 TO JULY 14, 2013

(@) the quantity and description of the security purchased or sold;
(b) the price per security paid or received by the client;

(c) the commission, sales charge, service charge and any other amount
charged in respect of the transaction; (b

(d)  whether the registered dealer acted as principal or agent; Q

(e) the date and the name of the marketplace, if any, on which th trq{action
took place, or if applicable, a statement that the transaction took plac %&ﬁore than
one marketplace or over more than one day;

0] the name of the dealing representative, if any, in tWaction;
(9) the settlement date of the transaction; 5

(h) if applicable, that the security is a securitﬁ(@e registrant, a security of a
related issuer of the registrant or, if the transact@g, occurred during the security’s
distribution, a security of a connected issuer of the Igtétered dealer.

(2) If a transaction under subsection (1) im@ed more than one transaction or if the
transaction took place on more than onNm@rketplace the information referred to in
subsection (1) may be set out in the egate if the confirmation also contains a
statement that additional details co g the transaction will be provided to the client
upon request and without addition rge

3) Paragraph (1)(h) doe§ nsppply if all of the following apply:

(@) the securi security of a mutual fund that is established and managed
by the registered de% r by an affiliate of the registered dealer, in its capacity as
investment fund er of the mutual fund,

(b) ames of the dealer and the mutual fund are sufficiently similar to
indicate th;t hgy are affiliated or related.
(4) e purpose of paragraph (1)(f), a dealing representative may be identified by
a code or symbol if the confirmation also contains a statement that the name
@e deallng representative will be provided to the client on request of the client.
(5) A registered investment fund manager that has executed a redemption order
received directly from a security holder must promptly deliver to the security holder a

written confirmation of the redemption, setting out the following:

(@) the quantity and description of the security redeemed;
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(b)  the price per security received by the client;

(c) the commission, sales charge, service charge and any other amount
charged in respect of the redemption;

(d)  the settlement date of the redemption. '\(b

(6)  Section 14.12 (5) does not apply to trades in a security of an investm@und
made on reliance on section 8.6. b‘
)

M.O 2009-04, s. 14.12; M.O. 2011-03, s. 62. 4
14.13. Confirmations for certain automatic plans \/

The requirement under section 14.12 to deliver a confir&tion promptly does not
apply to a registered dealer in respect of a transaction if I@he following apply:

(@) the client gave the dealer prior written ¢pajice that the transaction is made
pursuant to the client's participation in an automati&{nﬁ/ment plan, including a dividend
reinvestment plan, or an automatic withdraw @1 in which a transaction is made at
least monthly; qll/

)
(b) the registered dealer "Eed a confirmation as required under
section 14.12 for the first transactioﬂ m&ade under the plan after receiving the notice

referred to in paragraph (a); v

(c) the transaction in a security of a mutual fund, scholarship plan,
educational plan or educa@ﬂ trust;

(d) (paragrQ_IQvoked).

Ve
M.O 2009-04, s 11{3; M.O. 2011-03, s. 63.

14.14. Acg@ statements

(1) gistered dealer must deliver a statement to a client at least once
eve months.

Despite subsection (1), a registered dealer must deliver a statement to a client at
the end of a month if any of the following apply:

(@) the client has requested receiving statements on a monthly basis;
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(b) during the month, a transaction was effected in the account other than a
transaction made under an automatic withdrawal plan or an automatic payment plan,
including a dividend reinvestment plan.

(2.1) Subsection (2) does not apply to a mutual fund dealer in connection with its
activities as a dealer in respect of the securities listed in paragraph 7.1(2)(b).

3) Except if the client has otherwise directed, a registered adviser must d "e\a
statement to a client at least once every 3 months. (]/

(3.1) If there is no dealer of record for a security holder on the records fb‘r%gistered
investment fund manager, the investment fund manager must deliver g sta¥ement to the
security holder at least once every 12 months. i

(4) A statement delivered under subsection (1), (2), (3) or@ must include all of
the following information for each transaction made for the gient or security holder
during the period covered by the statement: &

(@) the date of the transaction; (b

(b)  the type of transaction; Q

(c) the name of the security; y\ N

(d)  the number of securitieik

(e)  the price per secur v

() the total vall.@\the transaction.

(5) A statement gey d under subsection (1), (2), (3) or (3.1) must include all of
the following infor% n about the client’s or security holder’'s account as at the end of
the period for whicfNhe statement is made:

@) Ebe name and quantity of each security in the account;
Q the market value of each security in the account;
(c) the total market value of each security position in the account;

(d)  any cash balance in the account;

(e) the total market value of all cash and securities in the account.
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(6) Subsections (1) and (2) do not apply to a scholarship plan dealer if both of the
following apply:

(@) the dealer is not registered in another dealer or adviser category;

(b) the dealer delivers to the client a statement at least once every 12 mon}tis)

that provides the information in subsections (4) and (5). '\
M.O 2009-04, s. 14.14; M.O. 201-03, s. 64. (I/Q
PART 15 GRANTING AN EXEMPTION '\b"‘

15.1. Who can grant an exemption ~\

(1) The regulator or, in Québec, the securities regulator orlty may grant an
exemption from this Regulation, in whole or in part, su yéto such conditions or
restrictions as may be imposed in the exemption. d

(2) Despite subsection (1), in Ontario only tlanreguIator may grant such an
exemption.

3) Except in Ontario, an exemption referreﬁlo in subsection (1) is granted under the
statute referred to in Appendix B ofhge,gulation 14-101 respecting Definitions
(chapter V-1.1, r. 3) opposite the name 01?51 local jurisdiction.

M.O 2009-04, s. 15.1; M.O. 2011- 65
PART 16 TRANSITION @
16.1. Change of regis@ categories —individuals
On Septem& 2009, an individual registered in a category referred to in

(@) @mn 1 of Appendix C, opposite the name of the local jurisdiction, is
registered g ealing representative,

column 2 of Appendix C, opposite the name of the local jurisdiction, is
regi red as an advising representative, and

s (© column 3 of Appendix C, opposite the name of the local jurisdiction, is
reglstered as an associate advising representative.

M.O 2009-04, s. 16.1.
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16.2. Change of registration categories —firms
On September 28, 2009, a person registered in a category referred to in

(@ column 1 of Appendix D, opposite the name of the local jurisdiction, is
registered as an investment dealer, (b

(b) column 2 of Appendix D, opposite the name of the local jurisdic@, is
registered as a mutual fund dealer, (]/

(c) column 3 of Appendix D, opposite the name of the Iocal,{lbsdiction, is
registered as a scholarship plan dealer,

(d) column 4 of Appendix D, opposite the name of t al jurisdiction, is
registered as a restricted dealer, 5

(e) column 5 of Appendix D, opposite the n f the local jurisdiction, is
registered as a portfolio manager, and

) column 6 of Appendix D, opposite théhame of the local jurisdiction, is
registered as a restricted portfolio manager. (l/

M.O 2009-04, s. 16.2. N
16.3. Change of registration categ;ﬁi(e?— limited market dealers

(1)  This section applies in @and Newfoundland and Labrador.

(2)  On the day this Re jon comes into force (see s. 17.1, 2), a person registered
as a limited market dealgm™\Megistered as an exempt market dealer.

3) On the dayﬂ1 Regulation comes into force, an individual registered to trade on
behalf of a limit rket dealer is registered as a dealing representative of the dealer.

4) Se @ 2.1 and 12.2 do not apply to a person registered as an exempt market
dealer u ubsection (2) until one year after this Regulation comes into force.

(5) g ections 12.3 and 12.7 do not apply to a person registered as an exempt market
ler under subsection (2) until 6 months after this Regulation comes into force.
\

M.O 2009-04, s. 16.3.

16.4. Registration for investment fund managers active when this Regulation
comes into force (September 28, 2009)
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(1) The requirement to register as an investment fund manager does not apply to a
person that is acting as an investment fund manager on September 28, 2009

(@) until September 28, 2010, or

(b) if the person applies for registration as an investment fund manager withj
one year after September 28, 2009, until the regulator or, in Québec, the secugt
regulatory authority has accepted or refused the registration.

(2)  Subsection (1) ceases to have effect on September 28, 2010. Q/
)

3) Section 12.5 does not apply to a registered dealer or a register, o%viser that is
acting as an investment fund manager on September 28, 2009. i

(4)  Subsection (3) ceases to have effect on September 28, @

M.O 2009-04, s. 16.4: M.O. 2011-03, s. 66. O

16.5. Temporary exemption for Canadian investm31t fund manager registered in
its principal jurisdiction f\

(1) A person is not required to register in t}(a)ocal jurisdiction as an investment fund

manager if it is registered, or has appl,%d;,for registration, as an investment fund
manager in the jurisdiction of Canada in%ic its head office is located.

(2) Subsection (1) ceases to h ~Llfect on September 28, 2012.

M.O 2009-04, s. 16.5; M.O. §O 3, s. 67.

16.6. Temporary exer@ n for foreign investment fund managers

(1) The invest und manager registration requirement does not apply to a
person that is actidg as an investment fund manager if its head office is in not in a
jurisdiction o&da

tion (1) ceases to have effect on September 28, 2012.

M. -04, s. 16.6; M.O. 2011-03, s. 68.
6?.7. Registration of exempt market dealers
(1)  This section does not apply in Ontario and Newfoundland and Labrador.

(2) In this section, “the exempt market” means those trading and underwriting
activities listed in subparagraph 7.1(2)(d).

86



REGULATION IN FORCE FROM MAY 31, 2013 TO JULY 14, 2013

(3) The requirement to register as an exempt market dealer does not apply to a
person that acts as a dealer in the exempt market on September 28, 2009

(@) until September 28, 2010, or

(b) if the person applies for registration as an exempt market dealer v@
one year after September 28, 2009, until the regulator or, in Québec, the segit
regulatory authority has accepted or refused the registration. (]/

(4) The requirement to register as a dealing representative of an xbﬁﬁt market
dealer does not apply to an individual who acts as a dealer in the t market on
September 28, 2009 i

(@  until September 28, 2010, or 50\/

(b) if the individual applies to be registered as aling representative of an
exempt market dealer within one year after Septembe 009, until the regulator or,
in Québec, the securities regulatory authority has acqa.sted or refused the registration.

N

M.O 2009-04, s. 16.7. Q

16.8. Registration of ultimate designatqc{p‘ersons

If a person is a registered ﬂim((? the day this Regulation comes into force,
section 11.2 does not apply to the@

(@) until 3 months Sf eptember 28, 2009

(b) if an mdw@ applies to be registered as the ultimate designated person
of the firm within 3 r@w_ after September 28, 2009, until the regulator or, in Québec,
the securities reg authority has accepted or refused the registration.

M.O 2009- O 8.
16.9. b ratlon of chief compliance officers

(2) person is a registered firm on September 28, 2009, section 11.3 does not

@ 0 the firm
N\

@) until 3 months after September 28, 2009, or
(b) if an individual applies to be registered as the chief compliance officer of

the firm within 3 months after September 28, 2009, until the regulator or, in Québec, the
securities regulatory authority has accepted or refused the registration.
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(2) If an individual applies to be registered as the chief compliance officer of a
registered firm within 3 months after September 28, 2009 and the individual was
identified on the National Registration Database as the firm’s compliance officer in a
jurisdiction of Canada on the date this Regulation came into force, the following sections
do not apply in respect of the individual so long as he or she remains registered as the
firm’s chief compliance officer: '\&)

(@) section 3.6, if the registered firm is a mutual fund dealer; (]/Q
(b)  section 3.8, if the registered firm is a scholarship plan deale;'\b"‘

(c) section 3.10, if the registered firm is an exempt marketdéaler;

(d)  section 3.13, if the registered firm is a portfolio ma?}r.

3) If an individual applies to be registered as the @ compliance officer of a
registered firm within 3 months after September 28, and the individual was not
identified on the National Registration Database as firm’s compliance officer on the
date this Regulation came into force, the foIIowinQ\i tions do not apply in respect of
the individual until one year after September 2 @)9:

(@) section 3.6, if the registered f)@{s a mutual fund dealer;

(b)  section 3.8, if the regisae?'zrm is a scholarship plan dealer;
(c) section 3.10, if the stered firm is an exempt market dealer;
(d)  section 3.13@3 registered firm is a portfolio manager.

if an individual ap#l}e§ to be registered as the chief compliance officer of an exempt

4) In Ontario %Qoundland and Labrador, despite paragraphs (2)(c) and (3)(c),
market dealer withR 3 months after this Regulation comes into force (see s. 17.1, 2),
Ogﬂ%e

section 3.1 not apply in respect of the individual until one year after this
s into force (see s. 17.1, 2).

Regulatio
L/
M.O *'@ 04, s. 16.9; M.O. 211-03, s. 69.

0. Proficiency for dealing and advising representatives

}) Subject to subsections (2) and (3), if an individual is registered in a jurisdiction of
Canada as a dealing or advising representative in a category referred to in a section of
Division 2 of Part 3 on September 28, 2009, that section does not apply to the individual
so long as the individual remains registered in the category.
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(2)  Section 3.7 does not apply to an individual until one year after September 28,
2009 if the individual is registered as a dealing representative of a scholarship plan
dealer on September 28, 20009.

3) In Ontario and Newfoundland and Labrador, section 3.9 does not apply to an
individual until one year after this Regulation comes into force if the individual s
registered as a dealing representative of an exempt market dealer on the dayyt
Regulation comes into force (see s. 17.1, 2).

M.O 2009-04, s. 16.10; M.O. 2011-03, s. 70. (]/

N>

(1) A personthatis a registered firm on September 28, 2009 i B@mpt from sections
12.1 and 12.2 if it complies with each provision listed in Ap E across from the
name of the firm’s principal jurisdiction.

16.11. Capital requirements

(2) Subsection (1) ceases to have effect on Septemh&g 2010.

M.O 2009-04, s. 16.11. r\(b
16.12. Continuation of existing discretionarWlief

A person that was entitled to rely '}nﬁexemption, waiver or approval granted to
it by a regulator or securities regu t@ authority relating to a requirement under
securities  legislation or secpytl directions existing immediately before
September 28, 2009 is exem rom any substantially similar provision of this
Regulation to the same ext n@ on the same conditions, if any, as contained in the
exemption, waiver or appr@s

M.O 2009-04, s. 16.@_O

16.13. Insurange r&guirements

sections §to 12.7 if it complies with each provision listed in Appendix F across from

the 2@0

In Québec, subsection (1), does not apply to a registered firm that is a mutual
d dealer or a scholarship plan dealer on September 28, 2009.

@ A é@gh that is a registered firm on September 28, 2009 is exempt from

the firm’s principal jurisdiction.

3) Subsections (1) and (2) cease to have effect on March 28, 2010.

M.O 2009-04, s. 16.13.
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16.14. Relationship disclosure information

(2) Section 14.2 does not apply to a person that is a registrant on
September 28, 2009.

(2)  Subsection (1) ceases to have effect on September 28, 2010.

N

16.15. Referral arrangements (]/

o

)
(2) Division 3 of Part 13 does not apply to a person that i a'\egistrant on
September 28, 2009. i

M.O 2009-04, s. 16.14.

(2)  Subsection (1) ceases to have effect on March 28, 201050

M.O 2009-04, s. 16.15.
<O

16.16. Complaint handling (b

(1) In each jurisdiction of Canada except @c, section 13.16 does not apply to a
person that is a registered firm in a jurisdiction’of££anada on September 28, 2009.

4
(2) Subsection (1) ceases to have ef@j'}n September 28, 2012.

M.O 2009-04, s. 16.16; M.O. 2011 S, 71,
16.17. Acount statements — r@al fund dealers

(1) Section 14.14 d @ot apply to a person that was, on September 28, 2009,

either of the foIIowinQ_

(@ ayermber of the MFDA,;

(b) Ca)mutual fund dealer in Québec, unless it was also a portfolio manager in
Québec Q~

(2) ubsection (1) ceases to have effect on September 28, 2011.

O 2009-04, s. 16.17; M.O. 2011-03, s. 72.
16.18. Transition to exemption — international dealers

(1)  This section applies in Ontario and Newfoundland and Labrador.
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(2) If a person is registered in the category of international dealer on the day this
Regulation comes into force (see s. 17.1, 2), its registration in that category is revoked.

3) If a person is registered in the category of international dealer on the day this
Regulation comes into force, paragraphs 8.18(3)(e) and 8.18(4)(b) do not apply to the
person until one month after this Regulation comes into force. (b

16.19. Transition to exemption — international advisers (]/

N>

(2) If a person is registered in the category of international Ser on the day this
Regulation comes into force, its registration in that category igNgyoked one year after
this Regulation comes into force (see s. 17.1, 2). S

M.O 2009-04, s. 16.18.

(2) This section applies in Ontario. 4

3) If the registration of a person is revoked under sﬁgsection (2), the registration of
each individual registered to act as an adviser on belaag of the person is revoked.

4) If a person is registered in the categor @nternational adviser on the day this
Regulation comes into force, paragraphs (e) (f) of subsection 8.26(4) do not apply
to the person until one year after this Regu}@qn comes into force.

M.O 2009-04, s. 16.19. _\(b

16.20. Transition to exemption ortfolio manager and investment counsel
(foreign)

(2) This section appl ﬁlberta.

(2) If a persor? egistered in the category of portfolio manager and investment
counsel (foreign) oM September 28, 2009, its registration in that category is revoked on
September Z&) 0.

3) f gistration of a person is revoked under subsection (2), the registration of
each 'i ual registered to act as an adviser on behalf of the person is revoked.

% If a person is registered in the category of portfolio manager and investment
nsel (foreign) on September 28, 2009, paragraphs (e) and (f) of subsection 8.26(4)
do not apply to the person until September 28, 2010.

M.O 2009-04, s. 16.20.

PART 17 WHEN THIS REGULATION COMES INTO FORCE
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17.1.

(1)
(2)

Schedule 26 of the Budget Measures Act, 2009 are proclaimed in force. '\

Effective date

Except in Ontario, this Regulation comes into force on September 28, 2009.
In Ontario, this Regulation comes into force on the later of the following: (b
(@) September 28, 2009; Q'\

(b) the day on which sections 4, 5 and subsections 20(1&0%1) of
.

M.O 2009-04, s. 17.1. 4

v
N
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FORM 31-103F1
CALCULATION OF EXCESS WORKING CAPITAL

Firm Name

Capital Calculation '\(b

(as at with comparative figures as at Q
Component Current PMor
iod iod
perio A b‘peno
1. Current assets { N
2. Less current assets not readily convertible into cash (e.qg., \/\
repaid expenses
prep p ) \\
3. Adjusted current assets
Line 1 minus line 2 =
4. | Current liabilities &V
Add 100% of long-term related party debt unless thgygn and

the lender have executed a subordination agreeN' the
form set out in Appendix B and the firm has de@’e a copy
of the agreement to the regulator or, in Qué@ e securities
regulatory authority

|
6. Adjusted current liabilities N
Line 4 plus line 5 =

7. Adjusted working capital

Line 3 minus line 6 = v
\

8. Less minimum capital S‘

9. Less market risk

10. Less any deduct Ie nder the bonding or insurance policy
required und 12 of Regulation 31-103 respecting
Reglstrat| uirements, Exemptions and Ongoing

Registrant Ilgat|ons (chapter V-1.1, r. 10)
11. Leia'(n’élantees

12. nresolved differences

12] )E&cess working capital

N\
\Q%es:

This form must be prepared using the accounting principles that you use to
prepare your financial statements in accordance with Regulation 52-107 respecting
Acceptable Accounting Principles and Auditing Standards (chapter V-1.1, r. 25).
Section 12.1 of Policy Statement to Regulation 31-103 respecting Registration
Requirements, Exemptions and Ongoing Registrant Obligations
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(Decision 2011-PDG-0074, 2011-06-07) provides further guidance in respect of these
accounting principles.

Line 5. Related-party debt — Refer to the CICA Handbook for the definition of
“related party” for publicly accountable enterprises.

Line 8. Minimum Capital — The amount on this line must be not less tha fb
$25,000 for an adviser and (b) $50,000 for a dealer. For an investment fund m %
the amount must be not less than $100,000 unless subsection 12.1(4) applies. (]/

Line 9. Market Risk — The amount on this line must be calculateid\acébrding to
the instructions set out in Schedule 1 to this Form.

Line 11. Guarantees — If the registered firm is guara jg the liability of
another party, the total amount of the guarantee must be Md in the capital
calculation. If the amount of a guarantee is included in the fir statement of financial
position as a current liability and is reflected in line 4, d @include the amount of the
guarantee on line 11. &

Line 12. Unresolved differences — Any unmgbved differences that could result
in a loss from either firm or client assets must @Iuded in the capital calculation.

The examples below provide gub@npe as to how to calculate unresolved
differences:

0] If there is an unreso ?Xdifference relating to client securities, the amount
to be reported on Line 12 will b ual to the fair value of the client securities that are
short, plus the applicable marg te for those securities.

(i) If there is resolved difference relating to the registrant's investments,
the amount to be re on Line 12 will be equal to the fair value of the investments
(securities) that ar.

(i) re is an unresolved difference relating to cash, the amount to be
reported o? 12 will be equal to the amount of the shortfall in cash.

se refer to section 12.1 of Policy Statement to Regulation 31-103 respecting

g%a lon Requirements, Exemptions and Ongoing Registrant Obligations for further
ce on how to prepare and file this form.

94



REGULATION IN FORCE FROM MAY 31, 2013 TO JULY 14, 2013

Management Certification

Registered Firm Name:

We have examined the attached capital calculation and certify that the firm is in
compliance with the capital requirements as at (b

Name and Title Signature Date (]/Q

1.
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Schedule 1 of Form 31-103F1
Calculation of Excess Working Capital
(calculating line 9 [market risk])

For purposes of completing this form:

(1) “Fair value” means the value of a security determined in accordance@
Canadian GAAP applicable to publicly accountable enterprises. Q

(2) For each security whose value is included in line 1, Current Assets, mully the
fair value of the security by the margin rate for that security set out beI%v?&Gd up the
resulting amounts for all of the securities you hold. The total is the “garRet risk” to be
entered on line 9. :t

@) Bonds, Debentures, Treasury Bills and Notes 50

0] Bonds, debentures, treasury bills other securities of or
guaranteed by the Government of Canada, of the Unit iIngdom, of the United States
of America and of any other national foreign g@®rnment (provided such foreign
government securities are currently rated Aaa orM by Moody’'s Canada Inc. or its
DRO affiliate or Standard & Poor’'s Rating @ces (Canada) or its DRO affiliate,
respectively), maturing (or called for redemption},

o)
within 1 year: (b'}% of fair value multiplied by the fraction
determined by dividing the number of days

4 to maturity by 365
over 1 year to 3 ye 1% of fair value
over 3 years to 7 rs: 2% of fair value

over 7 years years: 4% of fair value
over 11y : 4% of fair value

(i) nds, debentures, treasury bills and other securities of or
guaranteed by ;n yurisdiction of Canada and obligations of the International Bank for

Reconstructi Development, maturing (or called for redemption):

Q‘Within 1 year: 2% of fair value multiplied by the fraction
determined by dividing the number of days
to maturity by 365

A FQ over 1 year to 3 years: 3% of fair value

over 3 years to 7 years: 4% of fair value
over 7 years to 11 years: 5% of fair value
over 11 years: 5% of fair value

(i)  Bonds, debentures or notes (not in default) of or guaranteed by any
municipal corporation in Canada or the United Kingdom maturing:
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within 1 year: 3% of fair value multiplied by the fraction
determined by dividing the number of days
to maturity by 365

over 1 year to 3 years: 5 % of fair value

over 3 years to 7 years: 5% of fair value

over 7 years to 11 years: 5% of fair value '\(b
over 11 years: 5% of fair value Q

(iv)  Other non-commercial bonds and debentures, (not in ga(u]ﬂ: 10%
)

(v) Commercial and corporate bonds, debentures=eQd notes (not in

default) and non-negotiable and non-transferable trust con;;@yd mortgage loan
hg:

of fair value

company obligations registered in the registered firm’s name

within 1 year: 3% of fair val

over 1 year to 3 years: 6 % of fair e

over 3 years to 7 years: 7% of fagyalue

over 7 years to 11 years: 10% ofMQirvalue

over 11 years: 109 fair value
(b) Bank Paper N

Deposit certificates, pr%;s(;ary notes or debentures issued by a Canadian
chartered bank (and of Canadian reered bank acceptances) maturing:

within 1 year: @ 2% of fair value multiplied by the fraction
@ determined by dividing the number of days
O to maturity by 365
over 1l . apply rates for commercial and corporate
@ bonds, debentures and notes

<

(c) table foreign bank paper

q'Deposit certificates, promissory notes or debentures issued by a foreign
bankQ Ily negotiable and transferable and maturing:

é within 1 year: 2% of fair value multiplied by the fraction
\ determined by dividing the number of days
to maturity by 365
over 1 year: apply rates for commercial and corporate
bonds, debentures and notes
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“Acceptable Foreign Bank Paper” consists of deposit certificates or
promissory notes issued by a bank other than a Canadian chartered bank with a net
worth (i.e., capital plus reserves) of not less than $200,000,000.

(d) Mutual Funds

Securities of mutual funds qualified by prospectus for sale in@
jurisdiction of Canada: Q

(1) 5% of the net asset value per security as determined i accddance
with Regulation 81-106 respecting Investment Fund Continuo I-bﬂsclosure
(chapter V-1.1, r. 42), where the fund is a money market mutual fyn s defined in
Regulation 81-102 respecting Mutual Funds (chapter V-1.1, r. 39); OA

(i) the margin rate determined on the same @ as for listed stocks

multiplied by the net asset value per security of the fund as de)ermined in accordance
with Regulation 81-106 respecting Investment Fund Cogt'{@ls Disclosure.

(e)  Stocks (b

In this paragraph, “securities” in s rights and warrants and does not
include bonds and debentures.

(1) On securities mcl% mvestment fund securities, rights and
warrants, listed on any exchange in & a or the United States of America:

Long Positions — In Required
Secur@selling at $2.00 or more — 50% of fair value
@ies selling at $1.75 to $1.99 — 60% of fair value
%ecurities selling at $1.50 to $1.74 — 80% of fair value
O Securities selling under $1.50 — 100% of fair value
OQ.Short Positions — Credit Required
éQ Securities selling at $2.00 or more — 150% of fair value
\ Securities selling at $1.50 to $1.99 - $3.00 per share

Securities selling at $0.25 to $1.49 — 200% of fair value
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Securities selling at less than $0.25 — fair value plus $0.25 per
shares

(i) For positions in securities that are constituent securities on a major
broadly-based index of one of the following exchanges, 50% of the fair value:

(@)  Australian Stock Exchange Limited '\(b
(b) Bolsa de Madrid (]/Q
(c) Borsa ltaliana '\b‘ s
(d) Copenhagen Stock Exchange ~\
(e) Euronext Amsterdam 50\/
() Euronext Brussels
(9) Euronext Paris S.A. (b
(h) Frankfurt Stock Exc, e
0] London Stock whange
) New Zeal_and change Limited
(k) Stoc Stock Exchange
)] @'«ss Exchange
Q_OThe Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
@Qn) Tokyo Stock Exchange
() Cl\ﬁ)rtgages
OQ.(i) For a firm registered in any jurisdiction of Canada except Ontario:
éQ @) Insured mortgages (not in default): 6% of fair value
\ (b) Mortgages which are not insured (not in default): 12% of fair
value of the loan or the rates set by Canadian financial institutions or Schedule Il

banks, whichever is greater.

(i) For a firm registered in Ontario:
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(@) Mortgages insured under the National Housing Act
(R.S.C., 1985, c. N-11) (not in default): 6% of fair value

(b) Conventional first mortgages (not in default): 12% of fair
value of the loan or the rates set by Canadian financial institutions or Schedule I
banks, whichever is greater. '\

(9) For all other securities — 100% of fair value. (]/Q

M.O 2009-04, Sch. 31-103F1; M.O. 2010-17, s. 12; M.O. 2011-03, a. 73;@.”2013-09,

S. 2. \:\
N
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FORM 31-103F2
SUBMISSION TO JURISDICTION AND APPOINTMENT OF AGENT FOR SERVICE
(sections 8.18 [international dealer] and 8.26 [international adviser])

1. Name of person (“International Firm”):

2. If the International Firm was previously assigned an NRD number as a reglstK%
firm or an unregistered exempt international firm, provide the NRD number of the@

3. Jurisdiction of incorporation of the International Firm: (]/

N>

5. The name, e-mail address, phone number and fax num the International
Firm’s chief compliance officer. 5

Name: &O

E-mail address:
Phone:
Fax: f\(b

6. Section of Regulation 31-103 respectm%egistration Requirements, Exemptions
and Ongoing Registrant Obligations (chp{[e{ V-1.1, r. 10) the International Firm is
relying on:

4, Head office address of the International Firm:

[ ] Section 8.18 "k
[]  Section 8.26 v
[[] Other

7. Name of agent fc@:e of process (the “Agent for Service”):

8. Address for@%ice of process on the Agent for Service:

address s above as its agent upon whom may be served a notice, pleading,
subpoe mmons or other process in any action, investigation or administrative,
crimiE uasi-criminal or other proceeding (a “Proceeding”) arising out of or relating to

9. The Pﬁmional Firm designates and appoints the Agent for Service at the

or cerning the International Firm's activities in the local jurisdiction and irrevocably
yeS any right to raise as a defence in any such proceeding any alleged lack of
isdiction to bring such Proceeding.

10. The International Firm irrevocably and unconditionally submits to the non-
exclusive jurisdiction of the judicial, quasi-judicial and administrative tribunals of the
local jurisdiction in any Proceeding arising out of or related to or concerning the
International Firm's activities in the local jurisdiction.
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11. Until 6 years after the International Firm ceases to rely on section 8.18 or
section 8.26, the International Firm must submit to the securities regulatory authority

a. a new Submission to Jurisdiction and Appointment of Agent for Service in
this form no later than the 30" day before the date this Submission to Jurisdiction apd
Appointment of Agent for Service is terminated; and '\&)

b. an amended Submission to Jurisdiction and Appointment of Agent fdﬁvice
no later than the 30" day before any change in the name or above address,of th& Agent
for Service. N s

12. This Submission to Jurisdiction and Appointment of Ageﬂk for Service is
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Iocsiyisdiction.

Dated: O 5
(Signature of the International Firm or authorized si&@ry)
4N

(Name and Title of authorized signatory) ,\ N

Acceptance _\

The undersigned acce[@g appointment as Agent for Service of (Insert name
of International Firm) und@e terms and conditions of the foregoing Submission to
Jurisdiction and Appoinb f Agent for Service.

Dated: Q~
&

(Signatur, gent for Service or authorized signatory)

@% and Title of authorized signatory)
\

M.O 2009-04, Sch. 31-103F2; M.O. 2011-03, s. 74.
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FORM 31-103F3
USE OF MOBILITY EXEMPTION
(section 2.2 [client mobility exemption —individuals])

This is to notify the securities regulatory authority that the individual named in
paragraph 1 is relying on the exemption in section 2.2 of Regulation 31-103 respecti
Registration Requirements, Exemptions and Ongoing Registrant Obliga)@
(chapter V-1.1, r. 10).

Dk
1. Individual information b“'
N

Name of individual:

NRD number of individual: N\

v

The individual is relying on the client mobility exemption ibeach of the following
jurisdictions of Canada: &

(0N
'\J

2. Firm information Q

Name of the individual's sponsoring firm: N\,

\ LY
NRD number of firm: _{(b
Dated: ‘\?‘
N

(Signature of an authoriﬁnatory of the individual’s sponsoring firm)

/,Q
(Name and title f thorized signatory)
M.O 2009?{: gch. 31-103F3; M.O. 2011-03, s. 75.
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APPENDIX A
BONDING AND INSURANCE CLAUSES
(section 12.3 [insurance — dealer], section 12.4 [insurance — adviser] and

section 12.5 [insurance —

investment fund manager])

Clause

Name of Clause

- )
Details &

A

Fidelity

This clause insures against any loss QO gh
dishonest or fraudulent act of employees.

B

On Premises

This clause insures against any loss ofb&o‘ney and
securities or other property throuyh robbery,
burglary, theft, hold-up, or other#ludulent means,
mysterious disappearance, e or destruction
while within any of the ins@%‘?ﬁces, the offices

of any banking institutionQor clearing house or

In Transit

within any recogniz%@ce of safe-deposit.

This clause insures ayainst any loss of money and
securities or ,6tfMpr property through robbery,
burglary, thﬁ |d-up, misplacement, mysterious
dlsappear damage or destruction, while in
tran5|t in e custody of any employee or any
per Otlng as messenger except while in the

:rj r with a carrier for hire other than an

oured motor vehicle company.

Forgery or AIteratio@\
o.o

iIs clause insures against any loss through
forgery or alteration of any cheques, drafts,
promissory notes or other written orders or
directions to pay sums in money, excluding
securities.

<
O

<

N

Sec%
O

This clause insures against any loss through
having purchased or acquired, sold or delivered,
or extended any credit or acted upon securities or
other written instruments which prove to have
been forged, counterfeited, raised or altered, or
lost or stolen, or through having guaranteed in
writing or witnessed any signatures upon any
transfers, assignments or other documents or
written instruments.

M.O 2009-

04, Sch. A.
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APPENDIX B
SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT
(Line 5 of Form 31-103F1 Calculation of excess working capital)

SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made as of the day of , 20 Q

BETWEEN:

[insert name]
4
(the “Lender”) 0\/
D

AND

[insert name] &O

(the “Registered Firm”, which term shall includd\gh)successors and assigns of the
Registered Firm) (l/

(collectively, the “Parties”) y\ N

This Agreement is entered into by \the®Parties under Regulation 31-103 respecting
Registration Requirements, E»@ions and Ongoing Registrant Obligations
(chapter V-1.1, r. 10) (“Regulati 1-103") in connection with a loan made on the
day of , 20 b @Lender to the Registered Firm in the amount of
$ (théoan”) for the purpose of allowing the Registered Firm to

carry on its business. O

For good and vaIQQe‘consideration, the Parties agree as follows:
1. Subor, ion

The rep .,,f nt of the loan and all amounts owed thereunder are subordinate to the
claims(of )Ne other creditors of the Registered Firm.

Dissolution, winding-up, liquidation, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
gistered Firm

In the event of the dissolution, winding-up, liquidation, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Registered Firm:
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(@) the creditors of the Registered Firm shall be paid their existing claims in
full in priority to the claims of the Lender;

(b)  the Lender shall not be entitled to make any claim upon any property
belonging or having belonged to the Registered Firm, including asserting the right to
receive any payment in respect to the Loan before the existing claims of the otl}%

creditors of the Registered Firm have been settled. '\
3. Terms and conditions of the Loan (]/Q
During the term of this Agreement: '\b‘ s

@) interest can be paid at the agreed upon rate and timerkrovided that the
payment of such interest does not result in a capi eficiency under
Regulation 31-103;

(b)  any loan or advance or posting of securit @: loan or advance by the

Registered Firm to the Lender, shall be deemed to payment on account of the
Loan. (b
4. Notice to the Securities Regulatory A ity

The Registered Firm must notify §Re «Securities Regulatory Authority 10 days
before the full or partial repayment %t e loan. Further documentation may be
requested by the Securities Regulatbry *Authority after receiving the notice from the

Registered Firm. v

5. Termination of this AgN®ment

This Agreement may @ﬁ terminated by the Lender once the notice required
pursuant to SectiorQ_ this Agreement is received by the Securities Regulatory

Authority. Q

The Parties xecuted and delivered this Agreement as of the date set out above.

[Register@l‘irm]
O
{@%ized signatory

Authorized signatory

106



REGULATION IN FORCE FROM MAY 31, 2013 TO JULY 14, 2013

[Lender]

Authorized signatory

Authorized signatory '\(b

M.O 2009-04, Sch. B; M.O. 2011-03, s. 76. (]/Q
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APPENDIX C

NEW CATEGORY NAMES - INDIVIDUALS
(Section 16.1 [change of registration categories — individuals])

Column 1 [dealing

Column 2 [advising

Column 3 [associate advising

Trading Partner
Trading Director
Trading Officer

representative] representative] representative]
fa)
Alberta Officer (Trading) Officer (Advising) Advising Junior Officer (Advising) \‘u
Salesperson Employee Partner (Trading)
Partner (Trading) qQ
y 2
British Columbia | Salesperson Advising Employee Advising

Partner Advising Director
Advising Officer

X
4'\

Manitoba

Salesperson
Branch Manager
Trading Partner
Trading Director
Trading Officer

Advising Employee Advising
Officer Advising Director
<

js ciate Advising Employee

Asso Vdvising Officer
Assoc ¥ Advising Director

AsNo®te Advising Partner

New Brunswick

Salesperson
Officer (trading)
Partner (trading)

Advising Partner
Representative (advising) »
Officer (advising) Par
(advising) Sole propgigt
(advising)

Associate officer (advising),
Associate partner (advising),
Associate representative
(advising)

Newfoundland
and Labrador

Sales Person
Officer (Trading)
Partner (Trading)

Officer (Advisind/Partner

(Advising\ N
20!

Partn ing)
S(&éﬂietor

Nova Scotia Salesperson Offider- advising Officer —
Officer — trading unseling Partner- advising
Partner- trading rtner- counseling Director-
Director - tradin%‘ dvising Director- counseling

Ontario Salesperso, Advising Representative
Officer ( Officer (Advising) Partner

(Advising) Sole Proprietor

Prince Edward
Island

SMsperson

<@ficer (Trading)
artner (Trading)
A~

Counselling Officer (Officer)
Counselling Officer (Partner)
Counselling Officer (Other)

Partner (Trading)
Salesperson

Québec Representative, Representative (Portfolio

Representative - Manager), Representative
Q Group Savings (Advising), Representative —

Plan Options, Representative -

é (salesperson), Futures

\ Representative -

Scholarship Plan
(salesperson)

Saskatchewan Officer (Trading) Officer (Advising) Partner

(Advising) Employee

(Advising)
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Column 1 [dealing

Column 2 [advising

Column 3 [associate advising

Officer (Trading)
Partner (Trading)
Sole proprietor
(Trading)

Officer (Advising) Partner
(Advising)

representative] representative] representative]
Northwest Salesperson Representative (Advising)
Territories Officer (Trading) Officer (Advising) Partner
Partner (Trading) (Advising)
Nunavut Salesperson Representative (Advising)
Officer (Trading) Officer (Advising) Partner 0:
Partner (Trading) (Advising) (\\
Yukon Salesperson Representative (Advising) NS

M.O 2009-04, Sch. C.
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APPENDIX D
NEW CATEGORY NAMES - FIRMS
(Section 16.2 [change of registration categories — firms])

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Cqumr_1 > Cqur_nn 6
: . . [portfolio [restricted
[investment | [mutual fund [scholarship [restricted .
dealer] dealer] plan dealer] dealer] manager] portfolnfp
mana@q
N
Alberta investment mutual fund scholarship dealer, investment N{gio
dealer dealer plan dealer dealer counsel mg#ager/
(exchange and/or b‘ ,anestment
contracts), portfolio counsel
dealer manager (exchange
(restricted) i contracts)
British investment mutual fund scholarship exchange f N;ﬂnent
Columbia dealer dealer plan dealer contracts \‘ nsel or
dealer, Jportfolio
specia manager
limi
deale
fa T
Manitoba investment mutual fund scholarship ,\'D investment
dealer dealer plan dealer, counsel or
Q portfolio
(l/ manager
New investment mutual fund S db{ship investment
Brunswick dealer dealer ealer counsel and
‘k portfolio
e
O~ manager
Newfoundland | investment mutual fuR} | scholarship investment
and Labrador | dealer dealer plan dealer counsel or
portfolio
manager
Nova Scotia investmen tual fund scholarship investment
dealer Q'dealer plan dealer counsel or
Q portfolio
% manager
Ontario \ ent mutual fund scholarship investment
< er dealer plan dealer counsel or
portfolio
O manager
Prin g\/ard investment mutual fund scholarship investment
Is, é dealer dealer plan dealer counsel or
& portfolio
manager
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Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Colufmlr_1 . Cqur_nn g
[investment | [mutual fund [scholarship [restricted [portfolio [restnc_te
dealer] dealer] plan dealer] dealer] manager] portfolio
manager]
Québec unrestricted | firm in group scholarship Québec unrestricted restricted
practice savings-plan plan dealer Business practice practice
dealer, brokerage investment adviser, advisor(b
unrestricted company unrestricted '\
practice (QBIC) Debt | practice Q
dealer securities adviser (]/
(introducing dealer (International
broker), restricted Financial b‘ N
unrestricted practice Centre) '\
practice Dealer firm
dealer in 4
(Internationa investment \/
| Financial contract ao
Centre), brokerage \>
discount unrestrijpigd
broker pracy 6
dea&
msdaq)
Saskatchewan | investment mutual fund scholarship < investment
dealer dealer plan deal counsel or
portfolio
N o manager
Northwest investment mutual fund s‘blaYship investment
Territories dealer dealer ‘ pla#fdealer counsel or
*k portfolio
“v manager
Nunavut investment mutua@ scholarship investment
dealer dea plan dealer counsel or
@ portfolio
O manager
P
Yukon broker (<~broker scholarship broker
Q plan dealer
P

M.O 2009-02, gs% D.

O
S
\y
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APPENDIX E

NON-HARMONIZED CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS
(Section 12.1 [capital requirements])

Alberta

Sections 23 and 24 of the Alberta Securities Commission Rules
(General)

British Columbia

Sections 19, 20, 24 and 25 of the Securities Rules. Sections 2.1(i), _,
2.3(i), 9.4, 13.3, 15.4 and 16.3 of BC Policy 31-601 Registration
Requirements. qQ

y 2

Manitoba

None in the Act or Regulations — Handled through terms and ¥
conditions 6‘ 4

New Brunswick

Sections 7.1, 7.2, 7.3, 7.4 and 7.5 of New Brunswigk Loc%al
Rule 31-501 Registration Requirements, as those&ctions read
immediately before revocation

Newfoundland and Labrador

Sections 84, 85, 95, 96, 97 and 99 of the thes Regulations under
the Securities Act (O.C. 96-286)

Nova Scotia Section 23 of the General Securiti s, as the section read
immediately before revocation &
Ontario Sections 96, 97, 107, 111 o

5ntario Regulation 1015 made under
the Securities Act, as th06 clions read immediately before

revocation

Prince Edward Island

Section 34 of the formetwecurmes Act Regulations and incorporated
by reference by L&:\I.Rule 31-501 (Transitional Registration
Requirements

Québec Sections ZQ‘KltOEOQ, 211 and 212 of the Québec Securities Regulation
(chapt , I. 50) or sections 8 to 11 of the Regulation respecting
ounts of financial resources of securities firms as those
read immediately before repeal
Saskatchewan

@ctlons 19 and 24 of The Securities Regulations (Saskatchewan) as
()

se sections read immediately before revocation

None in the Act, Regulations, or local rules— Handled through terms
and conditions

Nunavut

None in the Act, Regulations, or local rules— Handled through terms
and conditions

Northwest Territories Q_
Yukon

Local Rule 31-501 Registration Requirements

-04, Sch. E.

4
O
e\
M.
$
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APPENDIX F

NON-HARMONIZED INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
(Section 16.13 [insurance requirements])

Alberta

Sections 25 and 26 of the Alberta Securities Commission Rules

(General) (00

British Columbia

Sections 21 and 22 of the Securities Rules Sections 2.1(h), 2.3( N
2.5(h) of BC Policy 31-601 Registration Requirements q/

Manitoba

Subsection 7(4) of the Securities Act — general requirem tq’g v
Director’s discretion B‘

New Brunswick

Sections 8.1, 8.2, 8.3 and 8.7 of New Brunswick L aIPRuIe 31-501
Registration Requirements, as those sections reuxmmediately
before revocation -~

Newfoundland and Labrador

Sections 95, 96, and 97 of the Securities Wns under the
Securities Act (O.C. 96-286) AN

Nova Scotia Section 24 of the General Securities Ryleses the section read
immediately before revocation ,
Ontario Sections 96, 97, 108, 109 of the @\aM® Regulation 1015 made under

the Securities Act, as those seqtions'read immediately before
revocation

Prince Edward Island

by reference by Local 1-501 (Transitional Registration

Section 35 of the former %&ities Act Regulations and incorporated
Requirements)

Québec Section 213 and Q14 of the Québec Securities Regulation
(chapter V-1.1,4 50 as those sections read immediately before repeal
Saskatchewan Section 33 gf Thg)Securities Act, 1988 (Saskatchewan), as that

section r immediately before repeal Sections 20, 21 and 22 of The
Securitf egulations (Saskatchewan), as those sections read

immeWXely before revocation

Northwest Territories

SeRoM 4 of Local Rule 31-501 Registration

Nunavut e’in the Act, Regulations, or local rules— Handled through terms
d conditions
Yukon PN Local Rule 31-501 Registration Requirements
J/

M.O 2009-04, séi%.

@
QOQ.
Ny
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APPENDIX G

EXEMPTIONS FROM CERTAIN REQUIREMENTS FOR IIROC MEMBERS

(Section 9.3)

Regulation 31-103 Provision

IIROC Provision

information — dealer]

section 12.1 [capital requirements] 1. Dealer Member Rule 17.1; and

2. Form 1 Joint Regulatory Financial Questionnaire and Re oﬁb

Part I, Statement B, “Notes and Instructions” ,\F}\

section 12.2 [notifying the regulator | 1. Dealer Member Rule 5.2; and \)
of a subordination agreement] 2. Dealer Member Rule 5.2A (]/
section 12.3 [insurance — dealer] 1. Dealer Member Rule 400.2 [Financial Institutio oqd]

2. Dealer Member Rule 400.4 [Amounts Requnp%

3. Dealer Member Rule 400.5 [Provisos withy resp&ct to Dealer

Member Rules 400.2, 400.3 and 400.4

section 12.6 [global bonding or 1. Dealer Member Rule 400.7 [Global {gapcial Institution
insurance] Bonds] \S)C
section 12.7 [notifying the regulator 1. Dealer Member Rule 17.6; -
of a change, claim or cancellation] 2. Dealer Member Rule 400.mtice of Termination]; and

3. Dealer Member Rule 40% ermination or Cancellation]
section 12.10 [annual financial 1. Dealer Member Rule 16‘§%Dealer Member Filing
statements] Requirements]; and

2. Form 1 Joint Re Financial Questionnaire and Report
section 12.11 [interim financial 1. Dealer Mem le 16.2 [Dealer Member Filing
information] Requiremen?sjznd

2. Form 1 Joint Regulatory Financial Questionnaire and Report
section 12.12 [delivering financial 1.

Deal qu’mer Rule 16.2 [Dealer Member Filing
Reqlﬁbnents]

subsection 13.2(3) [know your client]

wé*

Ier Member Rule 1300.1(a)-(n) [Identity and
editworthiness]
Dealer Member Rule 1300.2;
Dealer Member Rule 2500, Section Il [Opening New
Accounts]; and

recommending the use of borrowed
money]

A 4. Form 2 New Client Application Form
section 13.3 [suitability] U " | 1. Dealer Member Rule 1300.1(0) [Business Conduct];
2. Dealer Member Rule 1300.1(p) [Suitability Generally];
Q 3. Dealer Member Rule 1300.1(q) [Suitability Determination
Required When Recommendation Provided];
@ 4. Dealer Member Rule 1300.1(r) and Dealer Member Rule
O 1300.1(s) [Suitability Determination Not Required];
5. Dealer Member Rule 1300.1(t) [Corporation Approvall;
OQ. 6. Dealer Member Rule 2700, Section | [Customer Suitability];
and
Q 7. Dealer Member Rule 3200 [Minimum Requirements for Dealer
Members Seeking Approval Under Rule 1300.1(t) for
é Suitability Relief for Trades not Recommended by the
\ Member]
section 13.12 [restriction on lending | 1. Dealer Member Rule 100 [Margin Requirements]
to clients]
section 13.13 [disclosure when 1. Dealer Member Rule 29.26
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Regulation 31-103 Provision

IIROC Provision

section 13.15 [handling complaints]

1.
2.

Dealer Member Rule 2500B [Client Complaint Handling]; and
Dealer Member Rule 2500, Section VIII [Client Complaints]

subsection 14.2(2) [relationship
disclosure information]

1.

S SN

© N

Dealer Member Rules of IIROC that set out the requirements
for relationship disclosure information similar to those
contained in IIROC's Client Relationship Model proposal,
published for comment on January 7, 2011;

N

IIROC has not yet assigned a number to the relationshiQ'\
disclosure dealer member rule in its Client Relations%
Model proposal. We will refer to the dealer merr@e;r ru

number when IIROC has assigned one. 4
#\

Dealer Member Rule 29.8;
Dealer Member Rule 200.1(c);

Dealer Member Rule 200.1(h); \/

Dealer Member Rule 1300.1(p) ility Generally];
Dealer Member Rule 1300.J4Q) [$ditability Determination
Required When Recom on Provided];

Dealer Member Rule 1& ; and

Dealer Member Rulg=2500B, Part 4 [Complaint procedures /

standards] '\

section 14.6 [holding client assets in
trust]

o\
Dealer Mem@ar\ele 17.3

section 14.8 [securities subject to a
safekeeping agreement]

1.
2.

Deal Mer Rule 17.2A
Dealéb\ember Rule 2600 — Internal Control Policy Statement
5 fSafekeeping of Clients' Securities]

section 14.9 [securities not subject
to a safekeeping agreement]

1.

Dedler Member Rule 17.3;
aler Member Rule 17.3A; and
Dealer Member Rule 200.1(c)

section 14.12 [content and deliv
of trade confirmation] &

— N
g

%g\w

1. Dealer Member Rule 200.1(h)

M.O 2012-01, s. SQQ‘U
4
OQ.
4
Ny
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APPENDIX H

Exemptions from certain requirements for MFDA Members

(Section 9.4)

Regulation 31-103 Provision

MFDA Provision

section 12.1 [capital requirements]

1. Rule 3.1.1 [Minimum Levels];

2. Rule 3.1.2 [Notice];

3. Rule 3.2.2 [Member Capital] ;

4. Form 1 MFDA Financial Questionnaire and Report;

5. Policy No. 4 [Internal Control Policy Statements — Pbl
Statement 2: Capital Adequacy]

&
Q’\

section 12.2 [notifying the regulator
of a subordination agreement]

1. Form 1 MFDA Financial Questionnaire and Rep%t,’

Statement F [Statement of Changes in Sybordwated Loans];
and JC

2. Membership Application Package — Kh;

Loan Agreement) .

le I (Subordinated

section 12.3 [insurance — dealer]

3. Rule 4.5 [Provisos]; and
4. Policy No. 4 [Internal Cafyr
Statement 3: Insurange]

1. Rule 4.1 [Financial Institution Bo??/
2. Rule 4.4 [Amounts Required ,

olicy Statements — Policy

section 12.6 [global bonding or
insurance]

1. Rule 4.7 [Global F}Q@al Institution Bonds]
o\

section 12.7 [notifying the regulator
of a change, claim or cancellation]

1. Rule 4.2 [Nw Termination]; and
2. Rule 4.3 [Ternghation or Cancellation]
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